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CHANNEL ONE: EDUCATIONAL TELEVISION
AND TECHNOLOGY

FRIDAY, JULY 26, 1991

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, ARTS, AND HUMANITIES,
CoMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUuMAN RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 am., in room"
SD-430, Dirksen Sepate Office Building, Senator Jeff Bingaman,
presiding.

Present: Senators Metzenbaum and Bingaman.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR BINGAMAN

Senator BINGAMAN. We'll call the subcommittee to order.

The Senate was in session until about midnight last night, so I
think we’il probably be a little slow in getting started. I don’t know
if other Senators will be here or not as we proceed, but why don’t
we go ahead.

Educational TV is entering more and more into the curriculum
of our schools, and it is clear that this trend is not going to reverse
itself. It obviously can be an effective tool if made a part of the cur-
riculum, an effective tool to motivate students to learn. It is a tool
that creative and dynamic teachers can use to supplement the cur-
riculum,

It can also be abused, particularly when one considers that most
classroom periods are no longer than 45 or 50 minutes in length
and that teachers will have to be thoughtful in how to integrate it
into the curriculum given the very heavy demands that they al-
ready nave on that curriculum.

Educationial TV also has the potential to help us restructure edu-
cation. We have an incredible infrastructure of educational tech-
nology that has been developed since the Sixties that has not been
harnessed into a common direction or vision of what educational
technology can do to transform the way that teachers teach and
students learn and the way the curriculum is implemented.

What I believe is needed is a national debate to determine a
course of action to pull together some of these educational technoi-
ogies that exist and are being developed. It is my hope that this
hearing will be a part of that national debate. We need to try to
have a broad-based policy agreement about the overriding direction
that educational technology should take in the United States in the
next decade.

N
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There has been a lot of excitement and erthusiasm anc. interest
in using educational technology. As I am sure you are gll aware,
many questions and issues have arisen. There are questions with
respect to Channel One, which has been the most successful and
most broadly disseminated commercial activity of this type. There
are issues ofy State and local decisionmaking, teacher empjowerment
versus centralized control, the private sector versus the public
sector and taxpayers versus school spendthrifts. The purpose of this
hearing is to get a sense of the larger picture what is aducational
TV currently doing, v'hat are the alternative modes for educational
television, what is the merit of the programming that is available
today, what has been the documented educationa' impact in
schools that have used educational TV? What types of policy con-
cerns exist and how might the Federal Government help education-
al attend to the needs of students of all ages? What will be the di-
rection for educational technology in the classroora in the next
decade?

These are the types of questions that I hope we can explore
today. Clearly, we know there will have to be a major investment
in facilities and in technology in order to take advantage of what is
available. We have many questions about who controls the curricu-
lum, how to see to it that this technology is used effectively. These
3r§ all questions that need to be addressed as part of this larger

ebate.

We have some excellent witnesses here to do that today. We
have six people here to testify today, and I thought we would start
with Dr. Linda Roberts, who is the senior associate for science, edu-
cation and transportation program at the Office of T :chnology As-
sessment here with the Congress.

Dr. Roberts, we'll hear from you first, and then we’'ll go to a
second and then a third panel.

STATEMENT OF LINDA G. ROBERTS, SENIOR ASSOCIATE, SCI-
ENCE, EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM, OFFICE
OF TECHNOLOGY ASSESSMENT, UNITED STATES CONGRESS,
WASHINGTON, DC

Ms. RoBerts. Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to have the opportuni-
ty to provide testimony on this hearing on Channel One, education-
al television and distance learning technology. With your permis-
sion, I would like to submit my written statement for the record
and take this time to highlight several key points.

Senator BINGAMAN. That's fine. Just for the information of the
witnesses, we'll include all full statements in the record, and I
would appreciate it if people would summarize their main points as
best they can.

Ms. RoserTts. Thank you.

OTA'’s report, “Linking for Learning”—which you have a copy of,
and which I am gratified to know has been so useful to you—really
gives us a sense of the large picture of educational television and
technologies today. What we find is that distance learning technol-
ogies are bringing new resources to students, breaking down the
four walls of the classroom and creating new communities of learn-
ers.
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Five years ago, few States or districts had projects, plan= or even
knowledge of distance learning education at the K-12 level; yet
today, every State and many districts have projects that are up and
running.

The reason is twofold, and I think that we must pay, as you
pointed out, careful attention to why we have 30 much interest in
distance learning. First of all, important educational needs can be
met with these technologies, and the technologies themselves are
becoming more accessible and less costly.

The point I'd like to emphasize more than any for this hearing is
that distance learning today is diverse. I'd like to draw your atten-
tion to Figure 1. When we look at what is being delivered, how it is
being delivered, what technologies are being used, who is being
served, we see a wide range of options that give schools many
choices. And many are involved in shaping and defining and deliv-
ering distance learning. These include the local school districts
themselves, regional education service agencies, our State educa-
tional agencies, our universities and community colleges, our
public television stations, museums and science centers, even Fed-
eral agencies, and as your hearing will point out today, the private
sector as well.

But within the last 5 years, the principal application of K-12 dis-
tance learning has been to provide high school courses in advanced
subjects, especially where such courses are not available because
there are too few students, or a lack of qualified teachers. An in-
creasing number of efforts, however, go beyond courses and offer
modules and enrichment activities for classroom instruction,
whether they be electronic field trips or visits with distance schol-
ars, scientists and some of the Nation’s heroes.

And if we look at the technology that is in use, what we see is
that we have had many advances that have made it possible to
expand our learning opportunities and to expand access to educa-
tional resources.

It is important to note that some of these technologies, like cable
and educational television, are not new, but others, like fiber optic
systems and sateliites, are. But whatever form of technology is uti-
lized, recent developments have resulted in systems that are power-
ful, flexible, and increasingly affordable.

But there are issues and concerns. Despite the explosive growth
of distance learning in K-12 education, we have to be concerned
about access, about effectiveness, as you mentioned in your opening
comments, about who is in control, and in particular about teach-
ers’ involvement.

Access to the resources that I am talking about varies nation-
wide. The majority of teachers and students have yet to realize the
benefits that distance learning can provide. And access to distance
learmni recources requires technologies and support on many
levels. A dish on a roof, or cable to the door of the school, is only
the very beginning, and as some districts have discovered, really
making the technology effective and adaptable and usable requires
considerably more investment, not only in_terms of equipment and
wiring and resources, but even more importantly, in terms of in-
volving teachers and thinking about curricula and shaping curricu-
la to be effective learning opportunities.




4

In most instances, distance learning appears to be as effective as
face-to-face classroom instruction, and learner achievement has
been the primary question in research evaluations of distance
learning. Studies in Minnesota and Iowa and elsewhere show that
ls)tudent test scores, grades, and levels of participation are compara-

le.

But to be effective, courses and enrichment activities must in-
volve students in the learning process and be connected to the cur-
riculum and other classroom activities.

Whether distance learning works well for all students is yet to be
determined, and more research is needed.

Finally, as I mentioned before, teachers are very important.
Whether they are the distance learning teachers themselves or the
users of these resources, teachers must have training, preparation
and institutional support to successfully teach with distance learn-
ing technologies. And their concern about the quality of instruction
;‘nust be taken into consideration in shaping distance learning ef-
orts.

Much of the attention on distance learning has focused on the
power of the technology to improve student learning in today’s
classrooms. At least equally powerful and promising is the poten-
tial for technology to improve teaching. The system that brings re-
sources to students brings resources to their teachers. I can cite nu-
merous examples from the Montana Big Sky Network, which links
140 of the State’s rural one-room schools to really extend teachers’
knowledge about curricula and classroom activities, to the efforts
that several of the State education agencies embarked on last year
to help teachers understand what restructuri-\g was all about, and
to do this, a series of national teleconferences involved resources
from all over the country, including the public television stations
who were partners in this effort.

So there is a lot that we are already doing, but there is much
more that we could be doing in this area.

As we look to the future—and in conclusion, because I want my
remarks to be short enough so that you have time to ask ques-
tions—it is very clear that educational needs must drive the selec-
tion, the development and the v<e of distance learning. Now and in
the future, it will be important to support local choice and build on
available resources. A striking characteristic of distance learning
today is its diversity. Many different technologies are in use; serv-
ices involve different institutions, agencies, and the private sector;
and programs are designed to meet a variety of objectives.

There is no best technology nor is there a single best approach to
distance learning. A combination of Federal, State, local and pri-
vate efforts will be needed to exploit fully the full range of distance
learning resources. The key to future development is flexibility, ca-
pacity to expand, abiiity to connect with other systems, and appli-
cations that respond to educational needs.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Roberts follows:]

PREPARE D STATEMENT OF LINDA G. ROBERTS

Mr. Chairman, 1 am pleased to have the opportunity to provide testimony for this
hearing on Channel One, Educational Television, and Technology. Channel One is
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one of many efforts to use telecommunications technology to bring new resources to
America’s classrooms. Along with other satellite, cable, microwave, and fiber optic
systems, these efforts comprise the growing phenomenon of “distance education.”” As
requested, I will provide an overview of distance learning technology and applica-
tions in K-12 schools, identify key issues and concerns about distance learning, and
outline issues for future development and national policy.

My comments today draw on OTA's assessment of distance learning, which was
uested by this Committee. That report, Linking for Learning: A New Course for
ucation ' has received wide attention in Congress, in Federal agencies, and at the

State and local level. The accompanying video report has been used by hundreds of
educators seeking guidance on innovative telecommunications applications for edu-
cation.

Distance Education in Today's Classrooms

If we took a peek at distance learning in today’s classrooms, what would we see?
We could join students taking a Russian class taught in Columbia, South Carolina, a
Japanese course in Lincoln, Nebraska, a World Geography Honors class in Tuscaloo-
sa, Alabama, or a Physics class in Lexington, Kentucky.? All across the country
there are classes similar to these, electronically linking students and teachers as far
as a continent away or as close as across town. Students may be working on a
common science experiment with hundreds of sites across the country and sharing
their data over a computer network. On another day, students are traveling via sat-
ellite to the Boston Museum of Science to speak with a visiting Russian astronaut.
Others may be reading a formula on the chalkboard in a classroom far from their
own, or discussing poetry with a Pulitzer Prize winning author in London. And still
others may be watching programming specifically designed to bring daily news or
keep in touch with politics, world events, and issues that affect their daily lives.

All of these are examples of what is commonly known as distance learning. In
these applications, technology transports information, not people. Distance learning
technologies are bringing new resources to students, breaking down the four walls
of the classroom, and creating new communities of learners. The variety of formats,
degree of interaction, and types of programming offer many choices (see figure 1).
Today's distance learning activities include live, two-way interactions to link teach-
ers and students at different locations; programming that is live with limited or no

.interaction; computer conferencing with interaction on a delayed basis; current
events and other broadcast programming; and recorded materials.

Distance learning in today’s classrooms is diverse and growing. Five years ago few
States or districts had projects, plans, or even knowledge of distance education at
the K-12 level; today every State and many districts have projects up and running.
The reason is twufold: important educational needs can be met with this technology,
and the technology itself is becoming more accessible and less costly.

Local efforts, statewide initiatives, projects supported by the telecommunications
industry, the Star Schools Program, and other Federal prograins have all contribut-
ed to this growth. Today’s distance learning involves many players and new rela-
tionships. Providers include:

* local school districts,

¢ regional education service agencies,

» State education agencies,

* colleges, universities, and community colleges,

public television stations,

museums and science centers,

Federal agencies,

private sector (satellite, cable, telephone companies), and
consortia of the above.

Connecticut's distance learning efforts have involved a partnership between the
schools, the State education agency, and the telephone company. In Cedar Rapids,
Iowa, the Kirkwood Community College offered its syastem and expertise to the Focal
district. The local telephone cooperatives in the Oklahoma Panhandle worked with
four school districts to develop a state-of-the.art fiber optic television network. In
other locations, cable opera:y.s are working with districts to link classrooms or
expand access to a variety o: distance learning resources. Another company, Whittle

——

VUS. merm' Office of Technology Assessment, Linking for Learning: A New Course for
Education (Washington DC: U.S. Government Printinl% Office, November 1989).

? These courses and others were offered by the SERC project, one of the multistate consortias
funded by the Federa! Star Schools program.
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Communications, offers subscribing schools both prcgramming and equipment (a
satellite dish, television sets, and other requisite eauipment) free of charge, but re-
quires that students view a daily news program that includes 2 minutes of commer-
cials.® And in a unique partnership involving museums, schools, a research labora-
tory, private industry, and the Federal Goverrment, students joined Dr. Robert Bal-
lazd, the prominent marine geologist and discoverer of the Titanic, as ke conducted
t:gersea research last year on the floor of the Mediterranean Sea and in the Great
es,

Within the last 5 years, the principal application of distance learning in K-12
educatior. has been providing high school courses in advanced subjects, especially
where such courses are not availuble because of too few students or a lack of quali-
fied ceachers. For these students, distance learning is the only way that they can
study advanced Russian or Spanish, calculus or astronomy, art history or philoso-
phy, psychology or econorics, electronics or advanced placement courses (see table
1). An increasing numkher of efforts, however, go beyond courses and offer modules
and enrichment activities for classroom instruction, electronic field trips and visits
with distant scholars, acientists, and heroes. One of the most valuable applications
has been for steff development and inservice training for teachers and administra-
tors.

Advancer, in information and telecommunications technology have made possible
these rapidly expanding learning opportunities and access to educational resources
outsidz the classroom. Some of these technologies, like cable and educational televi-
siorz, Instructional Television Fixed Service (ITFS), and microwave broadcasts, have
heen around for years. Others, like fiber optics and satellite, are newer. But what-
ever form of technology is utilized, recent developments have resulted in systems
that are powerful, flexible, and increasirigly affordable. Most distance learning sys-
tems are hybrids, combining several technologies to provide increased flexibility to
meet local needs. Maine’s telecommunications network, for example, operates with
a hybrid of microwave, ITFS, and fiber optic transmission linkages. There i8 no one
best technology for all cpplications (see table 2).

Key Issues and Concerns

Access to Distance Learning Resources: Despite the explosive growth of distance
learning in K-12 education, access to these resources varies nationwide. The majori-
ty of teachers and students have yet to realize the benefits *hat distance learning
can provide. Access to cable, satellite, electronic networks, and even the more tradi-
tional forms of educational television programming varies considerably across the
Nation. In 1989, OTA estimated that 30 percent of rural and isolated high schools
would have a satellite dish by the end of 1990; of that number, approximately one-
third were expected to be purchased and installed using Star Schools money.* In a
recent sample of 35,000 schools and 3,500 school districts, enrolling some 20 million
students (one-half of the total enrollment in K-12 public schools), 64 percent of the
schools reported using cable television.5'

Access to distance learning resources requires technologies and support on many
levels. For example, even though the Dallas Independent School District (DISD) had
negotiated educational use of the local cable system and a connection to each school,
individual classrooms were not linked. To wire all-the classrooms in DISD school
buildings and provide access to cable television, telephone, and computer services,
DISD spent $3.8 million.® In other instances, statewide efforts, regional consortia,
and partnerships with industry have made it possible to expand access to distant
but needed resources. A number of schools have signed onto the Whittle Channel

One effort because this is the only way they can begin to tap into distance learning
resources. '

? The admission of advertiring in publiz schools has generated a great deal of controversy and
some states have barred districts from participating in this program. Despite this controversy,
Whittle officials indicate that 104’6 scﬁools in 47 States have subscribed to the network and
9,000 schools will be on line in the Fall of 1991. "“The rest will be on a waiting list pending our
decision to invest in additional hardware.” David Jarrard, Manager of Governmental Relations,
Whittle Communications, personal communication, July 18,1991,

4 Office of Technol(Jﬁy Assessment, op. cit.. footnote 1, p. 140.

® The study by Market Data Retrieval of Shelton. CT, also reported that channels most identi-
fied by requndl;nlg districts are NN, The Discovery Channel, and PBS. Nelson B. Heller and
Associates, The Heller Report or. Educational Technology and Telecommunications Markets, vol.
II, No. 9 (Northbrook, IL: June 1991).

® Office of Technology Assessment, op. cit., footnote 1, p. 71,
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Effectiveness

In most instances distance learning appears to be as effective as face-to-face in-
struction in the classroom. While not as extensive as the evaluation of distance
learning in industry, the military, and higher education, research to date conducted
by Star Schools projects and others has provided much useful information on K-12
applications.

Learner achievement is the primary question about distance learning: “Do the
students learn as much through distance learning as their counterparts in tradition-
al classrooms?” Studies in Minnesota, Iowa, ans elsewhere show that student test
scores, grades, and level of participation are comparable. To be effective, courses or
enrichment activities must involve students in the learning process and be connect-
ed to the curriculum and other classroom activities.” Students and teachers purtici-
pating in the Jason Project (an opportunity to follow the undersea explorations of
oceanographer Robert Ballard) spend weeks preparing for the “live, two-way" re-
search event.

Students report that they must work harder in courses offered at a distance but
they welcome the increased course options, responsibility for their own learning,
and the opportunity to expand their community. Whether distance learning works
well for all students is yet to be determined, and more research is needed.

We have seen a few exciting examples of using these resources to reach out to
“hose with special needs. For example, in the Pennsylvania Telelearning Project, au-

ographics technology (a two-way computer/voice system) linked a student too sick
-0 attend schoo! with his classmates and teachers. In this same project, the technolo-
gy allows students in a correctional institution to take calculus from the local high
school, electronically allowing them to work alongside the town kids. Some school
systems are beginning to reach the home, through homework hot lines and specia!
activities for parents over community cable channels and telephone voice-mail con-
nections. OTA's current work is examinir:;g how distance learning and other tech:ol-
ogies can reach functionally illiterate adults and those with limited English profi-
clency.

Support for Teachers
Whether they are the_distance learning teachers, or users of these resources,

teachers must have training, preparation, and institiztional support to successfully
teach with distance learning technologies, as indeed they must have for all educa-
tional technologies. Also, their concerns about technolegy and the quality of instruc-
tion must be taken into consideration in planning distance learning efforts. Teacher
input not only shapes development, it assures long-term commitment.

Much attention has focused on the power of technology to improve student learn-
ing in today's classrooms. At least equally powerful and promising is the potential
for technology to improve teaching. The system that brings resources to students
brings resources to their teachers. Distance learning not only provides tools for
teaching, but also a means to train, support, assist, motivate, and connect teachers
in the classroom. As in the program in Hartiord, Connecticut, teachers can team
teach with colleagues across town or across the country. They can discuss problems
and share ideas over an electronic network like Montana's Big Sky Telegraph,
which links all of the one room schools in the State with one another ang with
Western Montana University. Teachers can observe master teachers in action, par-
ticipate in professional meetings and courses, earn advanced degrees—all without
leaving their home school.

Looking to the Future

Educational needs must drive selection, development, and use of distance learn-
ing. Now and in the future, it will be important to support local choice and build on
available resources. A striking characteristic of distance learnin today is its diver-
sity. Many different technologies are in use, services involve different institutions,

encies, and the private sector, and programs are designed to meet a variety of
objectives. There is no best technology; nor is there a single best approach to dis-
tance learning. As we have seen; Channel Or.e is one of many options for local dis-
tricts to consider.

" A recent study of the effects of current events programming offered by Channel One and the
CNN Newsroom demonstrated that student knowledge of current events was much higher when
the viewing of these programs was integrated into the curriculum and instruction offered by
teachers. See "Techno News,” Educational Tnhno{:ao/, June 1991, vol. 31, No. 6, p. 61.

* The study on Technologies for Literac[\:awas requested by the House Committee on Education
and Labor and the Senate Committee on Labor and Humun Resources.

[ i)
i
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A combination of Federal, State, local, and private efforts will be needed to ex-
ploit the full range of distance learning resources. The key to future development is
flexibility, capacity to expand, and ability to connect with other systems.

Dissemination of information about approaches, available resources, and new
technology, coupled with research that evaluates ongoing projects (particularly
those that reach new groups of students and offer new areas for study), can further
delineate benefits, costs, and impacts on students, teachers, and institutions. Re-
search can help us understand the social and cognitive factors that affect the learn-
ing process. There are many questions to be explored: How much interactivity is es-
sential for learning? How can “distant” teaching be extended and supplemented by
classroom activities? How do computers, interactive video, and fax machines provide
tools for learning? How can this technology be harnessed to best serve the needs of
American education? .

The current emphasis on mathematics, science, foreign language, and current
events has generated a variety of needed programs. It may be time to encourage
development in other areas of critical need as well. For example, many schools have
a great need for resources to help students with limited English proficiency. Others
are seeking ways to help students develop critical thinking skills in cross-discipli-
nary courses. Teachers are experimenting with new methods of measuring student
learning via performance assessment. Distance learning could bring state-of-the-art
developments in curriculum and assessment to teachers in other locations.

We believe that it would be valuable to encourage projects that target nonschool
learner populations, including homebound and disabled students, and youngsters in
detention centers and prisons. Systems that serve schools could extend their reach
to the community; parent education, adult education, and other activities could be
expanded. These applications extend the use of resources to after school hours and
help assure long-term support of efforts.

National leadership could expand distance learning to communities without re-
sources and extend the reach of installed systems. Congress could specify expendi-
tures for distance education in current Federal programs or make funds directly
available through a new program. In previous testimony, OTA recommended that
the Star Schools Assistance Program be dynamic, open-ended, and focused on ve-
sults.® Encouraging responsiveness to advancing technologies, addressing education-
al needs, and encouraging the expansion of services and objectives are all to be de-
sired in this program as in any other that Congress might wish to support.

* Nancy (arson, Office of Technology Assessment, ""Distance Fducation: Current Status and
Future Directions,” testimony at hearings before the Committee on Labor and Human Re
sources, United States Senate, April 24,1991,

12




Figure 1

Distance Learning in Today’s Classrooms

WHAT 18 BEING DELIVERED?

|

I Whole courses--eepecielly
forelgn languages, methematice,

sc'ence, end Adveanced Piscement

Enrichment eotivitiee

' Current events progreme WHO 18 BEING SE../ED?

Truining end etett devetopment | ;. high schcote:
L-‘. « gifted and telented
students needing
sdvenced clesese

HQOW |18 DISTANCE EDUCATION
DELIVEREC?

Video {one-vay or two-way)
Audlooconferencing
Computer canferencing
Audiogrephice
Combinatione of the sbove

[ WHO ARE THE PROVIDEARS? - undersesved etudents WHAT TECHNOLOGIES
i needing en expanded ARE USED?
’ of coureee
Lous! ashoo! distriote srrey " Trenemisesion technologies:
Regionel gguzetion eervice in slementary end « brosdosst lol.vlolon and redlo
sgencies middle echocle: “ osble tetevisien

-= tiber optic ceble )

« ITFS (Instructionet Television
Fixed Service) .

« Mloroweve

“ Publio telephone network

- Satellite

Clesercom teshnologles:

“ oompulers with modeme
« heypad responee ayeteme
- telephones

« videocessstte recordere

« eladente recelving
enriochment materiele

Colisges, univereities, end
community colleges Teachere and etaf!

Pubilc teievision statione
Museume and goience centers
Fer~*nl agencies

Privete gsector

Coneortle

B (N SO Ly e,

Ottice ot Technology Awne sament, Linking for Ln\rnuui
A Hew - coapae tor bducation (Washington, i November 1989). report brief,

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

14

Table 1

Whots Courses Otfered In the United Stetea In 1968-89 by Selscied Distance Learning Projects®

Fo«ogn languages  Mathamalics and Political sclence Business and Vocasonal
(119 sclence (110) Humaniies (69) and history (18) ooonomica (16) educailon (9) Social studies (8)
Spanish (38) Calculus (17) English (28) History (11) Accounting {8) Shosthand {7) Social studies (4)
Franch (26) Mathemalics (12) Arvant history {7) Law (5) Economics (7)  Elactronics (1) Geography (2)
Garman (26) Psychology/ Comeposhion (7) Government/ Saleg/markating (1) Home economics (1) Amafican siudies (1)
Latn (12) sociology (12) Lueratue (7) potitcs (3) Chinese culture (1)
Japanese (§) Science (1) Communications (4)
Graok (4) Physics (9) Humanites (4)
Russian (4) Compulers (6) Educalion (3)
Chinesa (J) Tngonomeiry (6) Jowrnahsmvmodia (3)
nanan (1) Algebia ,v) Theator anis (3)

Astronomy (4) Music (2)

Pig-calculus (4) Phitosophy (1)

Stalisics (4) ,

Chemistry (3)

Healih (3)

Technology (3)

Gaology (2)

Analomy (i)

Bilogy (l)( Y

Anttwopology (1)

Elementary analysis (1)

Entomotogy (1)

Fish and wikdlite (1)

Marina sclence (1)

Physical sclance (1)

3 This table reprasanis the kolal numbei of

from 12 1o 1,200 shudents 0 ¥

b Numbsts thal appear In pareninasis 1api esan

d In Wha subject isied in the distance leaning piojecis ln Appandix A Nole thal these dasses eré nol

SOURCE:  U.S. Congrest, office of Technoloyy Asse:
ij}xifg_t ion, OTA-SET-430 {(Washington, DC:
pe 32

sment.,
.S, Govaernme

1 the tolal number of coulset offered under a genersl subject hesding

Llnklnq 101 L edlnlll(]

of squal slize; each class could have

A New Course tor

nt Puntlnq ()ttu.e, No(fémbtl 1989) , “tb. T2-2,

1)

15



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

16

Table 2

Tesnsmission Technologles fof Lasrning st s Distance

Tachnok Configuration Advantages Disadvanisg Trands
Temastral broadcast One-way broadcastol  NO special receiving aquip- Limiad channie and alr kme; receplion km-  increased use of datatex!
sudio, video, nd et of convediars; rasches  Wed by geography; high Wansmission vansinission
dats; posst most schools and homas uwbmumuﬂwmmunnauu
[
Fiber oplic Two way sudio, GA\R, High capacity/spesd; channel Instatation cos; fighta-of way maybs  Cosls Me decning ragidly;
and vidoo apacity e asly dabk, auired (0 1ay naw cable fhot deploymen ks anpand:
qualy signat Ing rapidty
Migowave Two wily pownt (0 point LOw-cost Uansmission e, 1o Musibe FCC hoansed, lowsd space of loca:  Use ol highet fraquencias is
audio, das, and fights-of-way needed tion may be dihcult Vo g, dicul and axpanding
video costly 10 expand channels, ¢ wdad lre:
m»nchs,&nluﬂwulunwoo
Instructional Telavigion  One way broadcas! of Low-cos) dakivery of video Crowdud kequencies, sspedially Iny [T1H Digilakzaon may viple chan
Fined Service {ITFS) poini 10 ol audio 199 g (equied, hmilod Wausenis nol capacity, widef Coverage
data, and video, pos- sion tange, kne o] sight required #10as using fopaaiare, 19
slbity of gudio retn broadcast 0f satee-daliv-
sred programming
Publc Swilched Two way voie, kmited Wide Coverngs, low iniial cos), Quahty Is spoily, kmaod wansimission ol dala  Expanding Ibes instakation;
Talgphone Netwerk dala and video high qulf‘r:.ﬂ capadly ol and video, cosl i dislance-sensiive digiizakion of natwork In
{PSTHN) fiber opiic Wnka, others han c1easng; increasing inlele
die ropair and upgi ot ganca in the network
Satelo One way broadcas! of 0 ag jasion Exp! uphnks, high isaloncosts;  Mora usa of Ku-band; possibio
voics, dala, and cosl is distancé insensitive FCC icansing of upenks, fecetve sie mi- wansponciet shortage,
video, possibisty of crowave inierderence (C band) of takn fade ncreased use of data;
sudic and dala reluin {Ku band) Incraased interacive
capabiiies
Audiographics Two wiy compuisrcon-  Low cos!, aasy axchange ol Visual Intoracuon bmited 1o graphica/stl Mote powertul computers, be!
fotencing with sudio graphics: utes PSTN video Lot sofwate and perpharals
inleaction Incraase capabiiies
Cable lolavision One way brosdcast o Wide avalabliity, low dolivery Linuled capacily, Can bé axficull lo interoon Capaciy inc19ases using Ibet,
sysiams two-way point (0 cosis nect, ol usually dosignod for lateracivity mote addiassabity and
poind audio, dala, and two way capablity
video
4 foctnology qnoau‘ do nal have (o opatdte videpsndonily, iy e ohen contaned in “hybead’ syslems ) o o
AR . Condgre s, vhivee Ul te gy e e et 171‘:.:-.‘: i ol ].f'l»llx»ln"]:A /‘\7 ..‘h-\.'_m,m i 1o
Cdaaton, CTA=SET 430 (Washington, DU o sovernment 11 Lt attiee, Hovesber 10w)) AT

pon L

17

1t




12

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you very much. In some ways, I think
we should have had you as the last witness so I would have more
thoughtful questions here.

Ms. RoBer1s. We are used to being last.

Senator BINGAMAN. Let me ask one questior that has occurred to
me. It seems as though the proliferation of educational TV through
the Channel One effort and perhaps others is really a national phe-
nomenon; it is occurring as a national activity.

It strikes me that there does not seem to be any national govern-
mental involvement in regulation or oversight or in any particular
aspect of this. I mean, we sort of have a national activity going on
with the Federal Government totally inactive on the subject. Am I
missing something? Is there more going on than I am aware of at
the Federal level?

Ms. Roserts. I think that is a very interesting question. If we
look at technoiogy more generally—all of the technology, whether
we are talking about computers or television—it has very much
been a grassroots development in this country, unlike what has oc-
curred in places like France or even Great Britain. In this country,
the afplication or, if you will, the bringing of technology into our
. schools has started at the bottom, not at the top. And while, as we
point out in both the “Power On” report, which was the look at
computer education and the applications of computers in schools,
and in the distance learning report, while Federal programs, Feder-
al dollars, have been an important resource for acquiring hardwsare
and software and access to other programming, you are quite
right—there hasn’t been a national agenda to either introduce
technology in the schools or to outline what the key goals and ob-
jectives would be.

Senator BINGAMAN. Is there any office in the Department of
Education that has this as its responsibility and is trying to do any-
thing in this area?

Mr. Roberts. When we looked at educational technology pro-
grams in the Federal Government, we found that there were ef-
forts in various parts of both the Department of Education and the
National Science Foundation, for example; but in most cases, they
were fairly discrete activities.

If you go back in the history of educational television sup-

Senator BINGAMAN. By “discrete” you mean minimal; right?

Mr. Roberts. Well, yes, yes, in fact that’s true. There was an
office of educational technology in the Department of Education,
but when all of the discretionary programs were consolidated into
Chapter II, that was one of the areas that became part of the con-
solidation.

When the Department of Education was funding “Sesame
Street”, for example, and a series of programs that were called
“ESA”—I can’t remember now what they were aimed at, but 1
_know they were a fairly extensive effort to create programming for
multticultural learning—there was a separate unit in the depart-
ment.

Now, 1n the office of special education, there is a separate pro-
gram area that funds technology for special education, but that is
an exception to the rule.

1S
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Senator BINGAMAN. Fow does the Star Schools program fit into
this larger picture? :

Ms. RoBeRTS. I would count that as one of the programs when I
say there are programs in the department. Particularly in the
more recent history, Star Schools is one of the efforts that has cer-
tainly contributed to both availability of resources for students and
schools, but more importantly it did present an opportunity for
school districts and State education agencies and telecommunica-
tions providers to come together fur the purpose of proposing dis-
tance learning activities. And as we pointed out in “Linking for
Learning”, even though only four major projects were funded in
the first go around, and an additional four projects were funded in
the second round of funding, the Star Schools legislation did send a
signal to the education community that essentially said Congress
thinks that distance learning resources ought to be utilized, and
they ought to be utilized to address some of our most critical needs,
those being science and foreign language instruction.

Senator BINGAMAN. As I understand the Star Schools program—
and | don’t understand it well, but to the extent I do—it really
tries to implement an interactive kind of learning, so that you've
got a local teacher, but you also have someone who can be called,
and there can be interaction during the time that the instruction is
provided. Is that accurate?

Ms. RogerTs. That is correct.

Senator BINGAMAN. Now, that’s very different from educational
TV as Channel One is performing it, or as CNN or others, in a
commercial sense are doing it, I gather.

Ms. RoBerts. Well, I think you really have to look at the use of
the technologies, not only in terms of what we are doing right now,
but what could easily occur tomorrow or the next year or 5 years
from now. And when we looked at what we call distance learning,
while we focused in on the opportunities for interaction, some form
of interaction, two-wayness, if you will, whether it is one-way
hroadcast with video and two-way connections through a teliephone
line or a computer network, whatever, it is clearly that what you
can do with one-way broadcast can easily be enhanced with the
other technologies very rapidly.

So if you take, for example, either the CNN Newsroom or the
Whittle Channel One activities, it would not be impossible to
extend those activities, for example, to have call-ins, to have stu-
dents ask questions about the news, or to have activities that
follow the news that might engage students in some very serious
discussions about critical world issues.

I refer to research in my testimony that makes the point that
whatever program we are talking about, if there is no connection,
if it is just what I would call a one-shot broadcast—you are getting
it, and that’s it, you've watched it for 10 minutes, and then you go
on to other things—if there is no connection to whatever else it is
that students are concerned about, or need to learn about in the
classroom, the effect n learning, what students really learn, is
minimal.

So it relates back again to how you think about the learning
process and what you want to do in the big picture.

pet
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Senator BINGAMAN. Could you give me a little description of
what the National Science Foundation is doing? I continue to hear
references to the fact that they have an effort in this regard, and I
don’t know what it is. I don’t know if they produce videos and send
them out, or if they broadcast programs, or what they do.

Ms. Roeerts. Well, I don’t know all of that. I really shouldn't
answer for NSF, but I will tell you what we are aware of. NSF has
funded with the Department of Education several efforts to build
programming, educational television programming. They have been
funders of the Children’s Television Workshop math series and the
science series, as one example. But within NSF, there has been
growing interest in usingotechnology as a tool for learning in sci-
ence and mathematics. there have been a number of projects
that have not been on what I would call the distance learning side,
but they relate back in because they are tools that can be used in
classrooms, including a lot of computer software development. And
more recently, NSF has gotten very interested in ways in which
telecommunications technologies can enable students to do science
more effectively. So for example ther have funded a number of
projects that involve students collecting scientific data and then
sharing that data with scientists and other experts over an elec-
tronic network.

I don’t know what they are planning to do in the future, but I
know in fact that this is an area of great interest for them.

Senator BINGAMAN. I guess to try to bring the question down to
concrete circumstances, if I were a high school biology teacher, and
I wanted to enrich the curriculum with the use of educational TV,
what resources could I get out of the National Science Foundation?
Could I get Earticular programs that I could show students as we
went through the textbook, or is there software available that is of
a learning type that 1 could get copies of, or what is available?

Ms. RoBerTs. I think it is not that direct a connection. The work
that NSF has funded has in some cases led to the development of
products that are now available, commercially or in what I would
call a nonprofit sector.

I mentioned the NSF KidsNet project. It is now possible for a sci-
ence teacher to have his students engaged in a study, for example,
of radon or trash in the environment, and do this through acquir-
ing, E_urchasing, materials that are now sold by the National Geo-
graphic Society. And the reason they are sold by the National Geo-
graphic Society is because NGS was a partner in this NSF-funded
project.

I was more prepared to answer the question not just from what
NSF has funded, but more generally, what is available or what
could be available to a science teacher.

Senator BINGAMAN. Well, answer that question, then.

Ms. RoBerTs. The answer is an awful lot. And back to your ques-
tion about educational television, there are an incredible array of
programs that are shown on our public broadcasting system.

Senator BINGAMAN. How does that high school biology teacher
find out about them?

Ms. RoserTs. Well, it requires in many cases a lot of initiative on
the part of the teacher. ?n many cases, to my knowledge, what
teachers do is they tape it off the air, and they tape it on their own
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time, or they get somebody in their district—a media coordinator,
perhaps—to tape it, and then they show it in the classroom, or
they show excerpts in the classroom.

There is now another opportunity through cable to take pro-
gramming off the Discovery Channel, which teachers are encour-
aged to do, and there are a whole host of programs there that are
available.

So at a very minimum what the Federal Government could do is
to publish a regularly updated catalog of what is available in the
way of educational resources or educational technology for class-
room teachers.

Ms. RoBerTs. It could do that, or it could provide incentives for
someone else to do that.

Senator BINGAMAN. Is anybody doing that?

Ms. RoBerTs. There are a number of efforts out there. Some of
them are at the State level. Some States, for example, like South
Carolina, have a very extensive technical assistance #rm through
their educational television activities, and they publish monthly
newsletters. So does, for example, the public television station in
San Francisco. There must be hundreds of these that give informa-
tion about programming that is available.

There is another group that purports to have an extensive data-
base of many of the educational television programs that can uti-
iize its resources. My understanding is that the Cable Alliance
group, called Cable Alliance for Education, provides information to
schools about resources that are available over cable networks.

So there is a lot of information out there, but you know, it is
easy for me to say that, because I have time to——

Senator BINGAMAN. Yes, you are at this hearing; there may be a
lot of these high school biology teachers who couldn’t come this
morning.

Ms. RoBeRTs. I really want to make the point that teachers are
very, very busy people. and they aren’t given time to go and look
for these things. The teachers that I know who are what I call the
really aggressive users of technology are often people who invest a
great deal of their own time and resources and effort to get access
to information.

But it doesn’t have to be that way. For example, there has been
an electronic network that has been up and running on an experi-
mental basis—I think it was funded by a number of States—that
connected the science coordinators at the State level. And one of
the things those people did was to pose areas where curriculum
needs were most critical and to ask what have we got in the way of
good resources. Those resources, then, were filtered back down to
the teachers in those particular States—or, go back to Montana’s
Big Sky. What you have there is a community of teachers who
really support each other and who share information, and it is the
collective knowledge that is so important. It is not that every
teacher needs to know everything, but tt.ey have to be able to go
somewhere easily and quickly to get the information that they
need. And they can’t wait a month or 2 months to get the informa-
tion—by then, the topic is gone, and they are on to other things.




16

Senator BINGAMAN. Now, the development of educational soft-
ware in different subject areas is not covered in your distance
iearning analysis, I guess.

Ms. RoBerTS. No, not directly. That was our first report—but I'd
be happy to answer questions on it.

Senator BINGAMAN. Tell me what is the Federal Government
doing to promote the development and dissemination of education-
al software for use in public schools.

blgis. RoBEeRrTs. I would say very little, directly. If you are talking
about——

Senator BINGAMAN. A “discrete” effort, right?

Ms. RoBERTS. Yes. Where the Federal influence has been most
important has been, quite honestly, in Chapter II funds which flow
from the Federal Government to the State to the schools, where
scll)ools have the opportunity to use those moneys to acquire tech-
nology.

But if you look at the question of have we made a significant in-
vestment in research and development, taking the risks, thinking
about what our most critical needs are and where we could create
prototypes and really powerful tools for learning, I would have to
say that the Federal investment has been minimal. There certainly
have been some projects, and there have been more in math and
science because NSF has been there to be the patron in some sense
of educational or computer software development—but in a limited
sense.

We have whole areas of the curriculum that we haven't paid any
attention to.

Senator BINGAMAN. It would seem that in foreign language in-
struction, educational software would be a very useful tool.

Ms. RoBEerTs. I would say foreign language, but I would also say
English as a second language. We have a growing number of stu-
dents in our schools who need reources, and they need them now,
and we could be doing much more in that area.

Senator BINGAMAN. Let me ask finally, and then we'll get on to
the remaining panels so they don’t think I am filibustering here,
what is your thinking on this—there is a company locateg, I be-
lieve, over here in Arlington, VA, called The Teaching Company—I
think that’s what it is called. At any rate, I ordered a couple of
audio cassettes from them. They essentially go arcund to universi-
ties and record the lectures, or record lecture series by what they
have determined to be the best university professors in differe.t
subjects, whether it is American history or geopolitics of Shake-
zpeare or whatever, and then they sell these, and they sell you a
set of the videos or a set of the audio tapes. Is that something that
is being done? It seems like a fairly normal thing to have. I mean,
the curriculum in our public schools if you get down to the high
school level is fairly constant—I mean, you are always going to
have someone teaching biology. It seems f;ke you could get a very
well-developed set of course work on that, and you could build a
course around a set of videotapes which presented that course
work. Does that make sense? Is that happening?

Ms. RoBErTs. I am trying to think of an example in materials for
students. The best example I can think of is the anthologies that
we have if we think about traditional textbooks. We have a lot of
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materials like that, and we could increasingly think about the kind
of information that we could have sort of in an encyclopedia/li-
brary kind of resource that would be available that might be on
video, that might be on CD-ROM technology. There is a lot happen-
in%there.

ut I have to go back and say that that feels like such a simple
kind of solution—you know, we'll get Carl Sagan, for example, to
talk about billions and trillions of whatever in the atmosphere. But
I think in the end we really know that we have to have mediators,
and those are our teachers, and they are the people who know the
students and who know how they learn, what their needs are, what
they aiready know, and can—while not necessarily any lenger be
the fountains or vessels of information, if you will—but they have
to be there. They have to be the facilitators. They have to be the
coaches that might enable a student, for example, to want to not
only hear a lecture but maybe want to view a Shakespearean play,
or watch the Civil War series.

If you ask me what we have available, we have an awful lot of
wonderful resources that some of our teachers are already begin-
ning to utilize. And I really do want to point out that many of the
materials that have been shown on broadcast television, I'm sure
as Sandy Welch will point out later, are now available on videocas-
sette.

Senator BINGAMAN. And are they available in a practical sense
for the average classroom teacher who wants those, or are there all
kinds of problems of getting the resources to order them and
having to persuade your school board that this is more important
than football? I mean, have we set up some kind of system so that
these are in fact available for teachers, rather than theoretically
available for teachers?

Ms. RoBerts. In fact they are available in some schools, and they
are available because-—and I'll give you the ideal circumstance—
there has been some way to acquire the resource, either through
the direct expenditure of local funds or through the State’s expend-
iture of funds and then distribution to the local district, and at the
same time, if we are talking about video cassette materials, there is
accessible hardware available; you don’t have to sign up 2 weeks in
advance to have it available. 1¥here is hardware t]gmat works in the
classroom or near the classroom, and there is a commitment and a
support of the use of this kind of technology by the district, by the
community, by the parents themselves.

I think we always have to understand that it is just not a
simple—it is not just laving it. There are all kinds of reasons why
you have it and wh*' you don't use it. There are also reasons why
you don’t have it in the first place.

I'm sorry that my answer isn’t straightforward, but it can be
there—it is there for some districts, for some teachers, but certain-
ly not for everybody.

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you very much. I appreciate you
being here today.

Ms. RoBeRrTs. Thank you, Senator.

Senator BINGAMAN. Our second panel consists of three individ-
uals—Ms. Laura Eshbaugh is vice chairman of Whittle Communi-
cations; Mr. Gary Rowe is senior vice presiden’, of Turner Educa-
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tional Services; and Ms. Sandra Welch is executive vice president
onAeducation services for Public Broadcasting Service in Arlington,

We appreciate all of you being here, and we’ll start with Ms.
Eshbaugh.

STATEMENTS OF LAURA ESHBAUGH, VICE CHAIRMAN, WHITTLE
COMMUNICATIONS, KNOXVILLE, TN; GARY R. ROWE, SENIOR
VICE PRESIDENT, TURNER EDUCATIONAL SERVICES, ATLANTA,
GA; AND SANDRA H. WELCH, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
EDUCATION SERVICES, PUBLIC BROADCASTING SERVICE, AL-
EXANDRIA, VA :

Ms. EsuBAUGH. Good morning, Mr. Chairman.

Whittle Communications appreciates the opportunity to appear
before you and participate in today’s discussion. My name is Laura
Eshbaugh, and I am vice chairman of Whittle Communications.

This is an important discussion, and we commend the Senate for
its desire to learn. A key challenge in American education today is
how lto equip teachers with the best tools to educate our young
people.

I am going to summarize today the remarks that are in my testi-
mony that you have previously received and then be available for
questions with the panel.

The Whittle Educational Network represents my company’s ver
serious commitment to introducing technology to classrooms. Wit
an initial investment of more than $150 million, it represents the
largest single introduction of television equipment to secondary
schools in U.S. history.

Our commitment has met with great acceptance, an obvious indi-
cation of the pressing need educators on the local level feel for new
tﬁchnology and the access to educational programming it affords
them.

Since we announced the idea of Channel One, the daily news
component of the network, in the winter of 1989, over 10,000
schools in 47 States have requested our service. That is more than
we currently have equipment to provide. Next month, approxi-
mately six million teenage students will see Channel One news pro-
gramming in its third season, and the 9,000-plus schools participat-
ing in the network will have access to their own in-house, closed
circuit television system.

Let me briefly outline for you what a school receives under a
subscription to the Whittle Educational Network. The first compo-
nent is Channel One, the daily 12-minute news and information
program produced especially for a teenage audience. Our produc-
tion staff, based in New York, includes news producers and writers
with extensive network experience. Channel One world and nation-
al news footage comes from our own crews plus those of VIS News,
which is a joint venture of NBC, Reuters, and the British Broad-
casting Corporation. The program includes 10 minutes of news and
2 minutes of commercials and public service announcements.

The second component of the network is the Classroom Channel,
which provides participating scheols with several hundred hours of
noncommercial educational programming every academic year.

24




19

This channel is operated by Pacific Mountain Network, which is an
gssociation of 43 public television stations in the Western United
tates.

Pacific Mountain Network through the Classroom Channel offers
schools a wide variety of programning, from foreign language
classes to documentaries to science programming as well.

The third component of the network is the Educators’ Channel,
which offers schools programs designed for educators. During the
last school year, for example, Judy Woodruff of McNeil-Lehrer
NewsHour hosted “American Classroom’, which was a series of
programs covering educational developments in research, teaching,
and classroom management. "

The final component of the network is an equipment package.
Each schooi participating in the network receives a package con-
sisting of a 19-inch color television set for every 23 participating
students. Typically, this means that most or 2!l of a school’s class-
rooms receive televisions. The televisions are connected by cable to
a central recording and playback station. They also receive two
VHS-format videocassette recorders that can automatically record
programming and play it back over the system. Finally, they re-
ceive a fixed, KU-band satellite dish and the equipment necessary
to receive the programming of the Classroom Channel, the Educa-
tors’ Channel, and Channel One.

The only limit that Whittle places on use of the equipment we
provide and maintain, by the way, is that it cannot be used for a
program competitive to Channel One; no such competing program
exists today.

Given the freedom to use the equipinent package for other school
purposes, schools have hooked their local cable television service
into our system, thereby providing access to network television,
PBS, CNN, Discovery, and other channels of programming for their
use. Schools have also connected video cameras to the system and
launched their own in-house broadcast, often conducted by the
school’s journalism classes.

Let me give you an interesting example of that. Last month, the
igvraduation ceremonies at Pennsauken High School in Pennseuken,

J were moved indoors because of rain. The school’s auditorium
would not accommodate the crowd, so the principal set up a video
camera in the auditorium and dispersed the overfF])ow audience into
the school’s classrooms, and they watched the graduation ceremo-
nies over the Channel One television system.

In addition to such uses, a number of schools have added a
second satellite dish or connected their existing satellite dish into
our system to expand their ability to use distance learning re-
sources.

There are a few other important things that you might want to
know about this service. Tge entire network, from television re-
pairs in Albuquerque to studios in New York to camera crews in
Moscow is provided to the schools without charge. The entire net-
work is funded by the 2 minutes of commercials that air during the
daili); Channel One broadcast.

Channel One and the Educators’ Channel have active boards of
advisors, many of whom are classroom teachers, to help us shape
our programming to meet the needs of educators. The Whittle Edu-
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cational Network also has a council of advisors chaired by former
US Secretary of Education Terrell H. Bell, and including among
others Dr. Constance Clayton, superintendent of schools for the
school district of Philadelphia, Howard Mehlinger, director for the
Center of Excellence in Education at Indiana University, and Fed-
eral Express Chairman Frederick Smith.

The initial idea for the Channel One program came from class-
room teachers who spoke of the need to provide students with cur-
rent events information in the medium of their generation—televi-
sion. In exploring how to meet that need, we came face-to-face with
an even greater challenge—how can teachers use a daily news pro-
gram, or any educational programming for that matter, as an inte-
gral classroom tool if the most that schools have is a handful of tel-
evision sets and even fewer videocassette recorders.

Great television programming is useless without the equipment
to watch it. Electricity isn’t very useful either unless you also have
lightbulbs. It was clear that the cost of a $150 million technology
package could not be passed along to the school systems struggling
to fund their most basic expenses. That is why there are commer-
cials on Channel One. Dollars that might otherwise to go support
sitcoms or music videos are now being channelled to provide educa-
tional programming and equipment for our schools on an unprece-
dented scale, Those commercials mean the network can be made
available without charge.

By this fall, less than 3 years since the announcement of our
plan, Whittle will have installed television sets in close to 300,000
classrooms and installed 18,000 VCRs and over 9,000 satellite
dishes in schools from one coast to the other.

Our goals for the Whittle Educational Network are far-reaching.
We will work with teachers closely to help integrate television pro-
gramming into their curriculums. Many teachers see television as
a powerful tool, a new weapon in their arsenal, and they are anx-
ious to make it a part of their lesson plans. We want to help them
succeed. Their success is our success, not only as a company but as
a Nation.

Thank you very much for this opportunity to appear tocay.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Eshbaugh follows:]

_ PREPARED STATEMENT OF LAURA ESHBAUGH

_Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Whittle Communications appreciates the opportu-
nity to appear before you and participate in todag’s discussion on educational pro-
grar'nmir&and technology. My name is Laura Eshbaugh and I am Vice Chairman of
Vhittle Communications.

., This is an important discussion and we commend the Senate for its concern and
its desire to learn. A key challenge in American education today is how to equip
teachers with the best tools to educate our young people.

For years, teachers of the Space Age—our age—were limited to tools that would
have been familiar in the hands of a teacherafOO years ago. While the world trav-
eled into the air, and then into space, while television and telephone and computer
atl:gd saulalllite technologies were invented and improved, the American classroom
8 still.

Our classroom teachers—dedicated to one of our nation’s most important and dif-
ficult tasks—never reaped many of the technological benefits of the society they
serve,

This is not %o say that technolegy is a panacea or the answer to all our education-
al woes. And it is not to say a student must have “high tech” equipment to receive a
solid education. In that same light, we can also say American businesses, for exam-
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Pie, could still functicn and conduct their affairs without telephones, or fax ma-
chines, or comﬁuters, or copiers, or automobiles, or airplanes. We all know business
would not work as well as it could under such handicaps. It would not be using all
of the resources available to it to get the job done. It would be migsing an opportuni-
ty to reach its greatest potential. It woul be less than it could be.

It may be that our schools today are less than they could be. In many school dis-
tricts, the homes wher= the students live have better and more extensive electronic
equipment then the school they attend. In a survey conducted early last year, the
Gallup Organization found that, when asked, 85 Ipercent of teachers said none of the
classrooms in which they teach had televisions. In larger cities, that grew to 92 per-
cent. This paucity of equipment ig, in the main, due not to educations philosophy or
choice, but to the simple lack of funds. A lack of funds that, given the current con-
straints on state and E)cal budgets, is likely to continue into the foreseeable future,

So new ways had to be found to introduce technology into the clagsroom. Many
efforts have been initiated. The STAR program is a goﬁ example. And, on the local
level, there have been innumerable fundraisers to purchase computers and other
electronic equipment for neighborhood schcole. A number of businesses at the local,
state and national level have made providing technology to schools a priority.

The Whittle Educational Network represents my company's very serious commit-

Our comimitment has met with at acceptance, an obvious indication of the
pressing need educators on the local level feel for new technol
educational programming it affords them. Since we announcedoﬁ’le idea of Channel
One, the daily news component of the Network, in the winter of 1989, more than
10,100 schools in 47 states have r. uested our service—that's more schools than we
currently have equipment to prov‘ae. Next month, approximately 6 million teenage
students will see the Channel One news program in its third season. And our 9,000
schools will have access to their own in-house, closed-circuit television system.

Let me briefly outline for you what a school receives under a subscription to the
Whittle Educational Network, We provide:

¢ Channel One, which is the name of our daily 12-minute news and information
Krogram produced uspecially for a teenage audience. Our production staff, based in

ew York, includes news producers and writers with extensive network experience,
Channel One world and national news footage comes from its own crews and VIS
News, a joint venture of NBC, Reuters, and the British Broadcasting Corporation.

he program includes 10 minutes of news and 2 minutes of commercials and public
service announcements,

* The Classroom Channel provides participating schools severa) hundred hours of
non-commercial educational pro ramming every academic year. The channel is op-
erated by the Pacific Mountain etwork, an association of 43 public television sta-
tions in the western U.S. It offers schouls a wide variety of programming—from for-
eign lunguage classes to documentaries.

* The Educato:’s Channel offers schools programming for educators, During the
last school year, for example, McNeil-Lehrer NewsHour's Judy Woodruff hosted
“American Classroom,” a serjes of programs covering education ti'evelopmenfs in re-
search, teaching, and classroom management.

* Equipment, In essence, each school receives its own in-house closed-circuit tele-
vision system that educators may use at their discretion.

Each school receives:

* A 1%-inch color television foir every 23 participating students. Typically, this
means all or most of a school's classrooms receive televisions. The televisions are
connected by cable to a central recordin and playback station.

* Two VHS format videocassette recorders that can automatically record program-
ming aud plav it back over the system.

* A fixed, K(-Band satellite dish and the equipment necessary to receive our pro-
gramming.

The only limit Whittle Places on the use of the equipment we provide and main-
tain is that it cannot be used for a program competitive to Channel One. No such
competing program exists today.

This lack of restrictions on the use of the equipment has stimulated American
teachers. Their resourcefulness in using our system has beer! nothing short of aston-
shing. Many schools have hooked our system to their local cable television service,
allowing them to receive network television, PBS, CNN, Discovery and other chan.
nels of pr ramming for their use. Schools have also connected video cameras to the
system and launched their own in-house broadcasts, often conducted by the school’s
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journalism classes. Scheol administrators and student government representatives
use it to hold electronic assemblies of the student body, make announcements, and
more.

Let me give you an interesting example. Last month, the graduation ceremonies
at Pennsauken High School in Pennsauken, New Jersey, were moved indoors be-
cause of rain. The school's auditorium would not accommodate the crowd, so the
principal set up a video camera there and dispersed the overflow audience to the
school’s classrooms where they watched the graduation ceremonies over the Chan-
nel One television system,

In addition to these uses, a number of schools have added a second satellite dish
or connected their existing satellite dish into our system to expand their ability to
use distance learning resources.

There are a few other important things you should know about this service:

* The entire Network—from television repairs in Albuquerque to studios in New
York to camera crews in Moscow—is provided to schools without charge. The entire
Network is funded by the 2 minutes of commercials that air during the daily Chan-
nel One broadcast.

* Each school has the right to preview each day’s editior. of Channel One and the
right to not show that day’s program to the student body if educators find anything
objectionable—in the editorial or advertising content. Schools have the opfion of
showing all or none of .he additional programming we .provide.

In addition, Channel One and The Educators’ Channel have active boards of advi-
sors—many of whom are classroom teachers—to help us shape our programming for
the needs of educators. The Whittle Educational Network also has a Council of Ad-
visors, chaired by former U.S. Secretary of Education Terrel H. Bell, which includes
among others Dr. Constance Clayton, Superintendent of Schools for the School Dis-
trict of Philadelphia, Howard Mehlinger, Director for the Center of Excellence in
Education at Indiana University, and Federal Express chairman Frederick Smith.

* We have awarded a $900,000 research grant to conduct a thorough, comprehen-
sive study of the impact of Channel One on students. Whittle awarded the grant to
Dr. Jerome Johnston of the Institute for Social Research at The University of Michi-
gan, and Dr. Evelyn Brzezinski of Interwest Applied Research in Beaverton, Oregon.

The 3-year stud};. which began in the fall of 1990, will use a variety of research
strategies to understand the impact Channel One has on student learning, class-
room teaching and curriculum organization.

Whittle Communications believes in Channel One and ihe value of the entire
Whittle Educational Network. With this level of support and acceptance by class-
room educators, it should come as no surprise to you that the initial idea for Chan-
nel Cne came from a brainstorming session with a group of classroom teachers sev-
eral years ago.

As a publisher of print media for use in schools for 20 years, Whittle is always
talking with teachers. During one of these group sessions a teacher essentially said
“we don't need another publication, we need a ‘“Today Show’ for teenagers.” That
was the seed that grew into Channel One.

But in preparing to meet one challenge—developing a daily news program for
teenagers—we were promptly faced with another. Tﬁat is the issue before us today.
How can teachers use a daily news program or any educational program, fcr that
matter, as an integral classroom tool if the most schools have is a handful of televi-
sion sets and even fewer videocassctte recorders? Great television programming is
useless without the equipment to watch :t. Electricity is not very useful unless you
have light bulbs, too.

For our effort, the answer to the question was obvious and daunting and very ex-

nsive. Any classroom teacher, any principal, any superintendent, and any school

ard member will tell you that to try to pass along the costs of a $150,000,000 tech-
nology program to Ioca{ school districts would be pure folly. Most are scraping to
fund their most basic costs—textbooks, teacher salaries, bus services, building main-
tenance, etc.

That is why there are commercials on Channel One. Money that may have bezn
spent sponsoring another rerun of Gilligan's Island or a music video is now provid-
ing television equipment and educational programming for our schools on an un-
precedented scale.

We are proud to be able to offer this extensive service— without charge—to our
nation's schools. We are proud, too, that the Whittle Educational Network is a
profit-making enterprise that benefits all those involved. Without that business in-
centive and without the commercials, this Network would not exist. Unlike the busi-
ness charity that we applaud, Channel One represents a true business-education
partnership.
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The conclusion of our efforts and our investment: By this fall—less than 3 years
since the announcement of our plan—Whittle will have installed television sets in
some 300,000 classrooms, and installed 18,000 VCRs and 9,000 satellite dishes in
schools from one coast to the other.

Our goals for the Whittle Educational Network are far-reaching. We will work
closely with teachers wanting to integrate television programming into their cur-
riculum. For many of them, television is a powerful tool--a new weapon in their
arsenal—and they are anxious to make it par{ of their lesson plans. We want to
help them succeed. Their success is our success—not only as a company, but as a
nation.

Thank you very much for this opportunity, and I amn prepared to answer any
questions you may have.

SuMMARY OF TESTIMONY BY LAURA EsHBAUGH, VICE CHAIRMAN OF WHITTLE COMMU-
NICATIONS, BEFORE THE U.S. SENATE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EpucaTioN, ARTS aND Hu-
MANITIES, JuLy 26, 1991

The Whittle Educational Network—a comprehensive telecommunications service
groviding educational programming and television equipment—has been requested

y more than 10,000 schools in 47 states, representing more than six million teen-
agers.

When a school subscribes to the Network, it receives:
¢ Channel One, a daily 12-minute news and information program designed especial-
ly for a teenage audience. Our production staff includes news producers and writers
with extensive network experience. Channel One world and national news footage
comes from its own crews and VIS News, a joint venture of NBC, Reuters, and the
British Broadcasting Corporation. The program includes 10 minutes of news and 2
minutes of commercials and public service announcements.
¢ The Classroom Channel provides participating schools several hundred hours of
noncommercial educational programming every academic gear. The channel is oper-
ated by the Pacific Mountain Network, an association of 43 public television stations
in the western United States.
* The Educators’ Channel offers schools programming for educators. During the
last year, for example, McNeil-Lehrer NewsHour's Judy Woodruff hosted “Ameri-
can Classroom,” a series of programs covering education developments in research,
teaching and classroom management.
¢ Equipment. Each school receives its own in-house, closed-circuit television system
that educators may use at their discretion. Each school receives:

* A 19-inch color television for every 23 participating students. Typically, this
means all or most of a school’s classrooms receive televisions. The televisicns are
connected by cable to a central recording and playback station.
e Two VHS-format videocassette recorders that can automatically record program-
ming and play it back over the system.
* A fized, KU-Band satellite dish and the equipment ecessary to receive our pro-
gramming.

Because Whittle does not limit the use of this equipment (with the exception of a
ﬂrogram directly competitive with Channel One should one be developed), educators

ave made extraordinary use of the system. Many schools have hooked our system
to their local cable television service, allowing them to receive network television,
PBS, CNN, Discovery and other channels of programming for their use. They have
also connected the system to a second satellite dish to access distance learning pro-
grams. Some have added video cameras and launched their own in-house broadcasts,
often conducted by the school's journalism classes.

The entire Network—from television repairs in Albuquerque to New York studios
to camera crews in Moscow—is provided to schools without charge. The Network is
fully funded by the commercials that air during the daily Channel One broadcast.

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you very much.

Before I ask any questions, let’s liear from the other witnesses.

Mr. Rowe, please go ahead.

Mr. Rowe. I am honored, Mr. Chairman, to be here to represent
my company in its support of the Nation’s educators.

_This hearing properly raises questions about the role of televi-

sion in schools and attempts by businesses to assist educators with
television resources. Our Nation wrestles with transforming schools
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from the Industrial Age model that turned out workers for our fac-
tories to an Information Age model that prepares our students for
citizenship in a global village.

What must those schools be like as we look into the future? The
wisdom that we hear from educators suggests that information re-
sources from television can help. They can help make schools seem
more relevant to students; they can help empower teachers with
new learning resources.

Schools should be able to capture, record, and play images avail-
able from television programmers—not because students should be
watching TV in schools—I think this is a very important distinc-
tion—they should not be; passive viewing of televigsion is a waste of
time—but using television in the classroom, using it, can animate
learning and connect the world outside schools to the world that is
haprenin< inside them.

Le* m= explain. If there is a television set in the classroom, stu-
dents can watch passively. That has a limited useful purpose. But
if a videocassette recorder is hooked to the television set, and the
teacher is given control of it, a passive experience can become an
active one. The television set in this sense is transformed. The deci-
sions about its content are no longer controlled by a programming
source in some remote location. It is not CNN, for example, that is
the ultimate controller of the news; the content is guided and con-
trolled by a professional educator. Add a cable hookup to the com-
bination of tﬂe VCR and the TV set with the multiple channels of
information that reside there, carried on its bandwith, and a rich
array of resources is possible that schools never had before.

This is really a part of the same revolution of television in our
homes. Once we were dependent on a handful of programming ex-
ecutives sitting on 6th Avenue in New York, deciding in essence
what we could see around our Nation. Now we are liberated. We've
got cable, we've got VCRs, we've got local video rental stores, we
can time-shift programming, we can watch television at our leisure
and in our own way, make up our own menu as we go along.

As surely as the phonetic alphabet and the printing press revolu-
tionized human knowledge, I think we are beginning to realize that
this medium, still quite in its infancy in a lot of ways, is not only
shrinking the size of our planet but is changing fundamentally how
we perceive, process, understand and act on information.

Dr. Mary Alice White of Columbia University Teachers College
writes: “Information is shifting from print to imagery, and the
shift is affecting deeply how we see our world, how we think about
fit, and how we solve its problems.” That has an impact on stu-

ents.
. Turner Educational Se~vices is the division of Turner Broadcast-
ing System that supports the work of educators by repurposing tel-
evision programs produced for our networks to form a usable li-
brary of sight and sound as classroom resources.

In this work, we follow three mandates that we learned from
educators—we weren’t smart enough to think of this ourselves first
to repurpose programs into usable segments of brief duration to fit
the instructional agenda of the classroom; second, to support the
use of these videos with the written word to assist the teacher in
their use, and third, to conform our work to the curriculum that
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a}(xi'eady exists in schools and not impose a new one from the out-
side.

In 1987, we formed a relationship with the National School
Boards Association to test the use of news programming in schools.
This test relied on permitting schools to tape record and time-shift
news on CNN and to deliver timely classroom guides using elec-
tronic mail. Based on the model we developed in this collaborative
effort with educators, we proved to our satisfaction that there is in
fact an appetite for contemporary information in schools and that
such information, properly configured, can support traditional
forms of instruction.

In 1989, R.E. Turner, our chairman, announced a news service
desighed especially for schools and available every day of the
school year and throughout the summer recess. Titled “CNN
NEWSROOM” and carried on CNN at 3:45 a.m. Eastern Time, it is
a program designed for the VCR. That is, schools can capture the
program on tape and use it at the discretion of classroom teachers.
It is available with a daily classroom guide written by professional
educators, working in tandem with our journalists. The classroom
guide is available in some parts of the United States on free elec-
tronic mail services and in all parts of the country on E-mail and
fax services at a modest telephone access charge of about one
dollar per day.

Now about to enter its third school year, CNN NEWSROOM has
licensec over 21,000 schools in all 50 States to use the program. En-
rollments are also growing internationally. Designed in collabora-
tion with leading educators, we see the purpose of the program
very clearly as an opportunity for teachers to connect events in the
real world to class discussion, reading, library research, homework,
and critical thinking skills. It invites students to do what our jour-
nalists do, to use information, research facts, organize ideas, assem-
ble resources, read, write, spell, measure, organize, synthesize, com-
pile, edit and report.

Let me emphasize the most important features of CNN NEWS-
ROOM. 1t is free of advertising. It is copyright-cleared for teachers
to record, retain and exhibit freely in classrooms, and the school
enrollment is a license without requirements. Schools are not obli-
gated to do anything with our program except what the profession-
al educatcrs in that school decide in their own discretion. It is tele-
vision news controlled by teachers.

We believe this new model of television works. It is not passive
viewing, but television used as a springboard to learning, as an
active learning tool. If you watch teachers use our program, the
most successful ones do so by selecting only those ;’)rortions of the
daily program appropriate to their classroom needs. They frequent-
ly use the pause control to interrupt and interact with students,
and they use other school resources that they connect to the pro-
ﬁram——everything from textbooks to wall maps to dictionaries and

omework assignments.

The reactions from students and teachers prove that electronic
information has a critical role to play in learning. For example,
during the crisis in the Persian Gulf, CNN NEWSROOM gave
teachers the option to bring this conflict in the world into schools
and give it context, relevance and meaning. Using CNN NEWS-
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ROOM, students were able to study the crisis, to understand the
historical background of the events that led to that war, the politi-
cal and economic geography of the Middle East, the governments
and leaders, the religion and culture, and the points of view of the
parties to the conflict. Just as we were very aware that all the
world’s leaders were tuned in to the same thing, that was an oppor-
tunity, happily, that we were able to invest in schools.

In keeping with our commitment to give teachers timely re-
sources, we determined to clear the copyright on all CNN coverage
of the Persian Gulf war so that copyright clearance gave schools
the opportunity to tape record and use everything that we had on
the air.

In a study slated to be published later this year by California
State University, Chico, a researcher who travelled to schools using
our program heard teachers tell stories apout student achievement.
According to teachers, vocabulary levels of students jumped as
much as 2 years. Students are becoming more active citizens and
reflect better critical thinking skills. They are more aware of what
is going on in the world and genuinely care about what they see on
the news. There are increases in observation skills, higher test
scores in geography, and active reading of newspapers and news
n}a.gazines in these schools, all of it testifying to the impact of tele-
vision news.

But I want to underscore what I think the reality of this really
amounts to. We didn’t make that happen. It is the teachers who
did; the teachers who used the program effectively.

In conclusion, I want to put our effort in a larger context. We are
working with colleagues throughout the cable television industry to
support education. I believe we all share the point of view that
businesses should support education, but not attempt to take over
the role of the professional practitioner. We have resources that we
bﬁlieve help schools, but we don’t have answers for the problems in
them.

Ted Turner’s announcement of our program was joined by other
cable networks and cable television operating companies. Together,
they formed Cable in the Classroom, an alliance pledged to provide
free basic cable service to all middle and secondary schools passed
by cable along with commercial-free, copyright-cleared programs
supported by teaching materials. Today there are 43 cable compa-
nies, representing service to over 80 percent of cable customers
across the Nation engaged in this effort. Twenty programmer mem-
bers of Cable in the Classroom provide over 150 hours per week of
curriculum-connected programming including coverage of the
Senate and the House of Representatives. These resources impose
no obligations on schools. They are available to the professional ed-
ucator who knows what many professional educators have taught
to us—that television at its best is a daily diary of planet earth,
and compelling images, sight and sound, and that in the hands of
teachers, there are options for schools that can make a dramatic
difference in what students learn and understand.

Thank you for your attention.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Rowe follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF GARY R. Rowk

Mr. CHAIRMAN: I am honored by the opportunity to inform the Senate through
this Subcommittee about the activities of my company in support of the nation’s
educators.

This hearing properly raises questions about the role of television in schools and
attempts by businesses to assist educators with television resources. Our Nation
wrestles with transforming schools from the industrial age model that turned out
workers for our factories to an information age model that must produce students
able to live in a global village.

What must those schools be like? The wisdom we hear from educators suggests
that information resources from television can help to make schools relevant to stu-
dents, and that teachers can be empowered by these resources. Schools should be
able to capture, record, and play images available from television programmers, not
because students should be watching TV in classrooms—they should not—but be-
cause using television in classrooms animates learning and connects the world out-
side school walls to the learning inside them. . .

Let me explain. If there is a television set in a classroom, students can passively
watch images. This has, ut times, served a limited useful purpose. However, if a
video cassette recorder is hooked to the television set and the teacher is given con-
trol of it, a passive experience can become an active one. The television set is trans-
formed. The decisions about its content no longer reside in a remote programming
source, the content. is guided and controlled by a pro‘essional educator. Add a cable
hookup to the combined television and VCR with the multiple channels of informa-
tion carried on its bandwidth, and a rich array of resources is possible that schools
never had before,

This is really part of the same revolution in television we are beginning to recog-
nize in our homes. Cable television has liberated viewers from limited choices and
the VCR has liberated us from the clock. We can not only choose from a wide menu
of Krogram options but we can time shift it to our convenience.

8 surely as the phonetic alphabet and the printing press revolutionized human
knowledge, we are beginning to realize that television is not only shrinking the size
of our planet but is changing fundamentally how we receive, process, understand,
and act on information. Dr. Mary Alice White of Columbia University’s Teachers
College writes: “Information is shifting from print to imagery . . . and the shift . . .
is affecting deeply how we see our world, how we think about it, and how we solve
[its} problems.”

Turner Educational Services is a division of Turner Broadcasting System that sup-
ports the work of educators by re-purposing television programs produced for our
networks to form a useable library of sight and sound as classroom resources. In
this work we follow three mandates from teachers: to re-purpose programs into seg-
ments of brief duration to fit the instructional agenda of the classroom, to support
the use of these videos with the written word to assist the teacher in their use, and
to conform our work to the curriculum that already exists in schools, not impose a
new one of our own making.

In 1987, we formed a relationship with the National School Boards Association to
test the use of news programming in classrooms. This test relied on permitting
schools to tape record and time shift news on CNN and to deliver timely classroom
guides using electronic mail. Based on the model we developed in this collaborative
effort with educators, we proved to our satisfaction that there is, in fact, an appetite
for contemporary information in schools and that such information, properly con fig-
ured, can support traditional forms of instruction.

In 1989, R.E. Turner, our chairman, announced a news service designed especially
for schools and available every day of the school year and throughout the summer
recess. Titled CNN NEWSROOM, carried on CNN at 3:45 a.m., Eastern Time, it's a
program, designed for the VCR, that is, schools can capture the program on tape
and use it at the discretion of classroom teachers. It is available with a daily class-
room guide written by professional educators working in tandem with our journal-
ists. The classroom guide is available in some parts of the United States on free
electronic mail services and in all parts of the country on e-mail and fax services at
a modest telephone access charge of about one doliar per day.

Now about to enter its third school year, CNN NEWSROOM has licensed over
21,000 schools in all 50 states to use the program. Enroliments are also growing
internationally. Designed in collaboration with leading educators, it is an opportuni-
ty to connect events in the real world to class discussion, reading, library research,
homework and critical thinking skills. It invites students to do what journalists do:
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to use information, research facts, organize ideas, assemble resources, read, write,
spell, measure, organize, synthesize, compile, edit and report.

Let me emphasize the most important features of CNN NEWSROOM. 1t is free of
advertising. It is copyright cleared for teachers to record, retain, and exhibit freely
in classrooms, and a school enrollment is a license without requirements. Schools
are not obligated to do anything with our program except what the professional edu-
cators in that school decide in their own discretion. It i8 television news controlled
by teachers.

This new model of television works: not passive viewing, but using television as a
springboard to learning. If you watch teachers use our program, the most successful
ones do so by selecting only those portions of the daily program appropriate to their
classroomn needs. They frequently use the pause control to interrupt and interact
with the students, and they use other school resources that they connect to the pro-
gram—everything from textbooks to wall maps to dictionaries to homework assign-
ments,

The reactions from teachers and students prove that electronic information has a
critical role to play in learning. For example, during the crisis in the Persian Gulf,
CNN NEWSROOM gave teachers the option to bring conflict in the world into
schools and give it context, relevance, and meaning. Using CNN NEWSROOM, stu-
dents were able to study the crisis, to understand the historical background of the
events that led to war, the political and economic geography of the region, the gov-
ernments and leaders, the religion and culture and the points-of-view of the parties
to the conflict. In keeping with its commitment to give teachers the timely resources
to help students understand the war in the Gulf, Turner Educational Services an-
nounced on January 14 copyright clearance for schools to tape record and use all of
CNN'’s coverage of the conflict thereby giving schools a front row seat to history-
making events.

In a study slated to be published later this year by California State University,
Chico, a researcher who traveled to schools using our program heard teachers tell
stories about student achievement. According to teachers, vocabulary levels of stu-
dents jumped as much as 2 years. Students are becoming more active citizens and
reflect better critical thinking skills. They are more aware of what's going on in the
world and genuinely care about what they see on the news. Increases in observation
skills, higher test scores in geography, and active reading of newspapers and news
magezines in these schools all testify to the impact of television news in classrooms.

But I want to underscore the reality this study addresses. None of this is happen-
ing in schools because CNN NEWSROOM made it happen. It's teachers who make
it happen, teachers who prompt that achievement. Our role is simply to provide the
best news coverage we can produce to meet the needs of teachers.

In conclusion, I want to put our effort in context. We are working with colleagues
throughout the cable television industry to support education. I believe we all share
the point of view that businesses should support education but not attempt to take
over the role of the professional practitioner. We huve resources but we don't have
answers.

Ted Turner's announcement of our program was joined by other cable networks
and cable televisior. operating companies. Together, they formed Cable in the Class-
room, an alliance pledged to provide free basic cable scrvice to all middle and sec-
ondary schools passed by cable along with commercial free, copyright cleared pro-
grams supported by teaching materials. Today, there are 43 cable companies repre-
senting service to over 80 percent of cable customers across the nation engaged in
this effort. Twenty programmer members of Cable in the Classroom provide over
150 hours per week of curriculum connected programming, including coverage of
the Senate and the House of Represent-tives. These resources impose no vbligations
on schools. They are available to the professional educator who knows what many
professional educators have taught us: that television at its best is a daily diary of
planet earth in compelling images, in sight and ~ound, and that in the hands of
teachers, there are options for schools that can make a dramatic difference in what
we learn and understand.

Thank you for your attention. I will be happy to respond to any questions that
you may have,

Exhibit pages attached explain the format of CNN NEWSROOM, the delivery of
the classroom guide with a representative example, and the growth and use of the
program,
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I WHAT IS CNN NEWSROOM? I

CNNNEWSROOM
is afifteen-minute, com-
mercial free, cable deliv-
ered news program offered
free of charge to middle and
secondary schools. There
is no charge for CNN E
NEWSROOM. Thepro- |
gram airs each weekday at
12:45 AM (PT) on CNN,
providing schools with the
most up-to-the-minute news
coverage from around the
world. Educators ¢can
record CNN NEWSROOM
using a VCR and utilize the
program anytime in their
curriculum. Taachers
control when, whers and
how often to use CNN
NEWSROOM in their
classes. In addition, a dally
classroom guide, de-
signed by professionul
educators, is available to
use with each day's pro-

CNN NEWSROOM Co-anchers. Brian Todd ond Cassancra Herlerson

dents in touch with the
issues of the day.

Created in collabora-
tion with leading educators,
CNN NEWSROOM goes to
the core of the curriculum
by encouraging students
to use information, re-
search facts, organize
ideas, assemble resources,
read, write, spell, measure,
analyze, organiza, synthe-
size, compile, edit and
report. The classroom is in
effectturnedinto a
newsroom, delivering expert
information on politics, sci-
ence, technology and the
top stories from around the
. world. CNN NEWSROOM
uses the power of cable

gram.
Drawing upon the
same resources that make
CNN an invaluable source
of news and information to
over 50 million cable television to put today's
homes, CNN NEWSROOM : world In perspective for
provides a daily video news ' tomorrow's leaders.

program that keeps stud-
S S
Each edition of CNN NEWSROOM begins with a news segment which re-
views the day’s lop stories, including a detailed report on a story of topical
interest. The second segment features incisive reports whichapply to a variety
of subject areas:

MONDAY - Future Desk: Focusing insightful reporting on global issucs.
developments and unfolding trends in the news and anticipated events in the
week ahead.

TUESDAY - International Desk: Exploring selecced international events
around the globe with CNN cameras and leading news organizations from other
nations.

WEDNESDAY - Business Desk: Examining the exciting world of busi-
nessand commerce and explaining how news from Wall Strect affects Main Street.
THURSDAY - Science Desk: Identitying scientists and explarers while
reporting scientific achievements that wili shape tomorrow.

FRIDAY - Editor’s Desk: Developing students’ communication skills by
surveying the world of media and its treasury of human interest storics, news re-
porting and editorial features.

Q
MC 46-780 0 - 90 - 3
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I THE DAILY CLASSROOM GUIDE I

The Daily Classroom Guide provides a wealth of heipful suggestions on how 1o integrate CNN

NEWSROOM into classrooms. The daily guide is available throu

as well as several Jlate department of education networks.

VICE

DESCRIPTION

gh three independent electronic mail Services,

Cost

INDEPENDENT ZLECTRONIC MAIL SERVICES

£, ™

network for
dewnloading the Classroom Guide 10 vour
personal computer, st a preset tme in the
mornung. When vou subscribe to this service, you
receive a paseword on a com puler yreen gusding
you through the process.

Option 1: $198 Nat subsnipnion fee per school yeer
provides “sutodowniosd software to access the
gusde for ONN NEWSROOM.

Option 2 875 flat subscnption fee per summer

session p
accwss the guide for CNN NEWSROOM.

MCI Mail

FAX: 1-800-388-4131
E-MAIL: 1-600.388-4128

Mail service providing direct debvery of the dailv
Kuide via fax machine, pnnted every morning for
usef.

On-bine deliverv ot the dassroom guide through
telecommunications. User wall recesve complete
INsIructions on how to use their computer to
retneve the puide by dialing a toli-free number.

Option 1« Fax: $40 per month with & 5% dis-
count for regstering for an entire year,

Option 2 - Electronic Mail: $25 per month flat fee,
with a 3% discount for repstening for en entire
vear. |.800 numbers are avadable for

WPRESS Cable-delivered informaton service available Qption I; S50 flat fee tor software and a decoder
x‘c thro h some local cable compantes. box to run the service.
hange
Option 22 $189 95 fee for the satellite kit including
1-800-772-6397 soltwaie, TURO receiver, cable and infoapher
STATE AND REGIONAL EDUCATION NETWORKS
CALIFORNIA: A non-profit electronic bulletin bosrd network Free to all schools.
FRED Mail distnbuting the 9 Gude to school
1619) 4754352 throughout the San Dhege County ares.
CONNECTICUT: Tel service sp d bv the Cost vanes depending on location.
E-Z Mail Connecticut Department of Education
FLORIDA: Tel ahons service sp d by the Free to all schools tn Flonda,
FIRN (Florids Informa: Florida Depariment of Eduaation.
tlon Resource Network)
GEORCGIA: Telec ONS service sp d by Free of charge to all schools in Georgia. Toll-lree
EduNet Georga College serving state schools and connect to all users.
universities.
NEW JERSEY: This new service combines ‘Learning Link NJ” and $150 annual subsaiption (ce,
New Jersey Link Educational Telecommunications Network”
(ETN).
NEW YORK: Tel ons service sp d by the Free to qualified educators.
NYSENET New York Board of Education
PENNSYLVANIA: Electronic mail and bulletin board service (92% of Free to all public schools 1n 'ennsylvania.
Penn Link all public schools in Pennsvivania are currentiv
USINR this system)
LEARNING LINK Membership organization ot siate education Na onlure charges; annual membership fees range
NATIONAL departments and public television stations, now from $0 to $190 depending on the loca) svstem.
CONSORTIUM available in 16 states

ERIC
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122222 1 2 24 (224 * Thursday July 11,‘ 1991
* * * * * *

* Ta * * * *

* * * * * *

I et *++ ANCHOR DESK

DAILY NEWS BR1EFING
Segment Segment
Title # Program Rundown Time
OPENING 1 145
TOP STORY 2 President Bush lifts economicC sanctions 2:45
against South Africa.

WCRLD 3 Oladapo Fafowora, former Nigerian ambassador :30
REACTION to the UN; and Prime Minister John Major.

TODAY'S 4 - Almost a year to the day after quitting 1:50
NIWSREEL the communist party, Boris Yeltsin is

inaugurated as Russian president.
- The Yugoslav republics take further
steps away fiom civil war.

SCIENCE 5 Serious scientific technology is behind the 3:10
DESK Creation of laser light shows.

BEFORE THE 6 Some braved the arduous journey to the New 3:10
REVOLUTION World only to fall victim to rampant disease.
DEFINITION 7 Prodigy :15
OUR WORLD 8 Nine-year-old Serena Wilson is one of a 2:00

promising group of "sports prodigies® who
is tempted with million-dollar contracts.

CLOSE 9 35
---------------- EDITOR’S NOTES: TODAY'S NEWS TERMS ---c-ccvcecuccn-
sanctions apartheid compliance subjective Krugerrands
nuclear nonproliferation apothecary Brioni Agreement excel

* & & & &

COPYRIGHT (C) 1991 CABLE NEWS NETWORK, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
COPYRIGHT (C) 1991 TURNER EDUCATIONAL SERVICES, INC.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
May be reproduced for clasas- Curriculum materials by
room ugse with CNN NEWSROOM Teachable Tech, Inc.
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ANCHOR DESK July 11, 1991 (2)

TOP STORY

1. To what do you attribute President Bush’‘s positive attitude
toward the end of economic sanctions against South Africa?

What are ANC leader Nelson Mandela’'s objections? How might
lifting sanctions affect South Africa economically?
Politically? Socially? Why are Black South Africans divided on
this issue? What do you think administration sources mean when
they say that compliance is "subjective?"

2. Ask students to list the five demands made of South Africa‘'s
government by the U.S. Congress. Select ONE of the conditions
and find and present resources dating from 1986 that provide
evidence to support or refute the statement: The South African
government has complied with (this demand.]

WORLD REACTION

3. Divide the class into teams and have each defend one of the
positions reflected in the two "reaction" quotes. Ask students
to compose their own resolution, and let the debate begint

NEWSREEL

4. Compose a brief biography of Russian President Boris Yeltsin
for an upcoming edition of WHO'S WHO IN THE SOVIET UNION.

5. What is the next step in the Yugoslav peace negotiations? How

did the Brioni Pact get its name? What are some of the
conditions of the agreement?

OUR WORLD

6. How might involvement in high level athletic competition affect
some young people? Would the challenge spur them to greater
achievement or the pressure defeat their dreams? Explain. Do
you agree with Richard Williams’ rationale for rejecting the
contracts offered to Serena by professional agents? Why or why
not? What could professional sports agents and corporate
sponsors gain from cultivating athletes at such young ages?

7. What aspects of Serena's life are different from that of
typical 9-year-olds? Which are probably the same? Discuss the
concept of internal motivation. Do you feel! that most achletes
compete "for themselves" as Marion Jones contends?

8. Marion Jones and Serena Williams are described as "sports prod-
igies." Throughout history, there have been many children who
have shown extraordinary talent in fields as diverse as music,
the sciences, and politics, i.e. Peter the Great was only 10
years old when he became Tsar of all the Rvesias. En-courage
students to write and perform a one-act play about the amazing
accomplishments of an historical OR imaginary child prodigy.

----------------------- ADVANCE ASSIGNMENT -----vvvucnsnaocenacocannn
EDITOR'S DESK: COMPUTER ARTIST

38
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IZZIZ AR 222 R EE L MR LS L L BN * hkdkkd kvhdd July 11, 1991 (3)
% * * * 'R . *
T ) + '} * & ok # 'L
T * * * * % *
RARRE AEEhE AAERE AEERE T * kwwed 4vded DESK: LASER TECHNOLOGY

1.

PREVIEWING: What dcas the acronym "LASER" stand for? (Light
Amplification by Stimulated Emission of Radiation) Discuss the
meaning of each word. Based on this "definition," expiain the
properties and various uses of lasers.

AFTER VIEWING: Create a web of words and ideas related to
lasers. Classify these terms within categories that describe
different functions of laser light. What are some of the most
common uses of lasers? Explain the process of combining points
of light to create animated "visual illusions."” How does this
application of laser technology reinforce the concept of "light
amplification by stimulated emission of radiation?”

Have students research the makeup of lasers. Ask them to pay
particular attention to the reaction that is needed to form the
light beam. Have the students diagram a laser and color code
tho elements that are used to produce the laser effect.
Encourage students to brainstorm futuristic inventions that
make ugse of laser technology.

The segment goes into detail about the process used to produce
laser shows. Have student groups use lights, gels and mirrors
to create their own shows. Have them show each step of the
process they use. If students have access to computer drawing
programs, or are able to use programs such as BASIC, have them
draft their final "laser drawn' display on the computer.

Laser shows are a purely fun usage of lasers. The video
segment mentions a few other, more serious, uses for lasers.

Oon the board, have the class list as many uses as they can,
serious or otherwise, jior laser technology. Divide the class
into groups. Have each group research a different use of
lasers. Groups can use library materials or even call
companies that might use lasers in their workplace. They could
gset up visits to hospitals or other industries that use lasers,
One group could set up a visit and demonstration by someone who
use3 lasers. Direct groups to share their work in displays or
written reports.

------------ EDITOR’S NOTES: TODAY'S NEWS TERMS ----------------

laser technology animation sequences illusion wizardry

------------ NEWSROOM LIBRARY: RELIABLE SOURCES ----------s-----

Boraiko, Allen., "A Splendid Light -- Lasers."” NATIONAL
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rEREE e e * July 11, 1991 (4)
* T T T S
* e ‘.

LAAAL S AR e *+ STUDENT HANDOUT: THE APOTHECARY GARDEN
DIRECTIONS: In colonial times, medicines were often found in uearby
forests or growing in small herb gardens behind the village
apothecary shop. Long use often proved the effectiveness of such
natural remedies; a chemical derived from the herb digitalis, long
used to treat "faintness of heart," is the basis of a modern
pharmaceutical with the same name and devoted to the game purpoee.
Research to find traditional treatments for each of the following
gsymptoms of disease. Good sources may be herb and garden
catalogues, the FOXFIRE books, almanacs, and old medical references.
Compile these in a small home health manual. As a foreword to your
booklet, use quotes and homilies about the relationship between good
health agd a long, happy life. Illustrate each entry if possible.
ABDOMINAL PAIN:

BROKEN BONES:

BLEEDING:

LACERATIONS/CONTUSIONS:

FEVER:

CONGESTTON:

HEADACHE :

INSOMNIA:

NAUSEA:

COUGHING:

ARTHRITIS/STIFFNESS OF JOINTS:

COLIC IN INFANTS:

RASH/SKIN DISORDERS

CONSTIPATION:
OTHER:
"0, true Apothecary, thy drugs are swift..." -- william Shakespeare
g0
O
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B MAJOR EDUCATIONAL ORGANIZATION ENDORSEMENTS NN

"CNN NEWSROOM is a
perfect example ol how corporate
Ameérica can and shoukit be
supporting our public schools --
no sinngs no sales pitches. just a
vision of the ultimale payback --
the bas! educated studants in
the world.*

Tan Marshall

Director. Pubtic Relations

National Parent Teachers

Assogciation

"...Whether schools de-
cide to use CNN NEWSROOM is,
of course, a local decision... we
urge cable operators do their pan

_in helping wire those schocls that

are not aiready set up for cable.
We (do not) want to trade our
kids for a sateliite dishor a TV
monitor.”

Gary Marx

Associate Director

American Association ot

School Administrators

“Wae particularly applaud
the focus that CNN NEWS-
ROOM has given to each
separate day, because this
moves the news program avai-
able to students fromsimply a
superticial 90-second headline to

: something of depth and context.”

Scott Thompson

Executive Director

National Assogiation for
Secondary School
Principals

On December 18, 1989, CNN NEWSROOM racenved enaoisements
fom the ive maor educational organzanons represented above
Actured L 1o R xeth Geiger. NEA. Scott Thompson. NASSP. Gary Marx.
AASA. Ton Matshas, Nahonal PTA, Jetemiah Floyd, NSBA and Ted Tuines

“CNN NEWSROOM s timely. lascinating

and informative. It helps students thinking crtically,
{to) organize ideas and better understand the con-
nections that tie the worid together *

Kelth Gelger

President

Nalional Education Association

"We believe the 15-minute daily news
program designed for viewing by students in the
classroom adds a significant and highly usetul
dimension to the school curnculum.”

Jeremiah Floyd

Associate Executive Director

National School Boards Association
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N Ustr survey I

hools are using CNN

hin the school day

The following infor- Oragram ls Used
mation was compiled from On Currses Eveets
a random survey of CNN “sa
NEWSROOM subscnbers Other —__
throughout the United
States, conducted from Progrem o
October 1989 to June of Homercom
1990.

Program le -
Incorporaled Into
The Cless
Subscrbers Overall reuchion when
asked. s CNN NEWSROOM a beneti-
ciol teaching taol?”
veo IEEENEETT Total Schools
Enrolled in l
Sometimes | 2.7% CNN NEWSROOM |
= 21,188 l
No | 0.3%
‘asof 7/17/91
Not Sure I 3.0%
0% 25% 50% 75% 100%
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N  USER SURVEY

g Teachers reachions fo the quahty of ~
CNN NEWSROOM CNN NEWSROOM.
Enroliments !
By Grade Level i
Grade Schools
Level Entolied |
flementary 6v88 75% 69.2%
Migdie 2029 i ;
Junior 1538 |
Servor 5501 | St
K-12 808 !
Other 2040 25% 255%
! Unknown 126 % 25%
Total = 20129 ! | .
l *As of 6726191 i 0% - 0y, N
e e Exceilont Good Far Poor Uncertain

Sludenls reaclions o the quality of CNN
NEWSROOM. (Studen! reactions basod on

teacher Interviows )

The above inrtormation
100 was compiled from a ran-
dom survey of CNN
A NEWSROOM subscribers
throughout the United States.
50%
20.7% conducted from October
1989 to June of 1990.
25%
1.8% 3.5%
0% sew 0% W
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THE QUESTION 1t your schoot distict does not cutenlly
CPN use broadcas! or distance leatning, which of the

services would you prefer? )
SURVEY cmwsoon NI

The following information 14N Network

was obtained from a research repert

prepared vy Curriculum Product Discovery Channel 14 6%
News, August 1990, following a

survey of their readers. The report Channei One
1s titled "Broadcast and D.stance

Learning in the Nation's 15,000 Pas
Public School Districts.”

coan

All Otheis

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 5%

QUESTION: What type of access do the schools in
your district have to distance fearning?

cose TS

Other . 57%
0%

10% 2% 30% 40% 50%

' QUESTION: Which of the follovang broadcast or
distance learning services are used by the schools

in your distuct?

4]
CNN NEWSROOM 156%

Discovety Channel

C-5PAN
Channe!l One IR0

Othet

No Answet B.4%
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%
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Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you very much.

Ms. Sandra Welch, with Public Broadcasting, thank you for
being here.

Ms. Welch. Thank you for asking us to participate.

My written comments have been submitted, so I will just summa-
rize those and also perhaps provide a little bit of first-hand experi-
ence to the discussion here.

I started as an elementary school teacher in Kentucky 25 years
ago, and I think my second week on the job my principal rolled a
television set in and told me that there was this new thing called
educational television, and they had a program on there that she
wanted me to try with my students. I was very, very skeptical. I
couldn’t imagine how something on television could be as grand
and glorious as what I could provide those kids as a teacher fresh
out of college, thinking I was there to save the world for the next
generation,

But I used television, and I found it to be an incredibly powerful
and effective tool in motivating youngsters. In this case, it was a
reading program. I have been soldy ever since.

I began working in public broadcasting not too long after that,
and just recently came out of one of the local stations in Kentucky,
a State network, where last year we put a satellite dish on every
school in the State. We equipped every school with interactive
equipment, and we were one of the first Star School recipients to
provide those high school credit courses, particularly in the rural
disadvantaged schools in Kentucky and eventually in other States.

Let me just give you a broad overview of what public television
has been doing over the past 30 years. Being of course the original
educational classroom television, we today have probably the
broadest scope still of any provider. We have a tremendous range
of programs, and we use a tremendous number of techniques in
providing resources to teachers and students. We have curriculum-
specific programs that are broadcast by many of our stations
throughout the country—programs in math, science, social studies,
the arts, grades K through 12, that teachers use in very direct
ways as they are teaching fractions or American history or dance.

We also have the new distance learning programs that you were
talking with Dr. Roberts about earlier. That was one of the things I
did before I left Kentucky. I found the best physics teacher we
could possil ly find, and I put that teacher on the air, and that
teacher teaches “very day in a live, interactive format, to young-
sters not only in these rural schools in Kentucky, but across the
country.

And of course, public television has a tremendous number of re-
sources that you see in our prime time schedule, programs such as
the “Astronomer” series that we recently aired, that is used by sci-
ence high school teachers; the Civil War series, which is being ex-
tensively used by teachers in middle schools and high schools; the
science programs that are in our afternoon schedule, like “3-2-1-
Contact” and the math series, “Square One TV”.

We have thousands and thousands of hours that we broadcast,
that we deliver through satellite, that come into schools on cable
and that come in on videocassette to teachers and learners, again,
nationwide.
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Another characteristic that distinguishes public television is our
reach. We are reaching three out of four students nationally cur-
rently. That represents about 30 million students. We reach about
four out of five elementary and secondary schools, and about 1.5
million teachers use our programs.

In addition to just these statistics, I think the human story is the
one that means the most to me and is What we are really all about
here today.

Two years ago when we were starting our distance learning
effort, I went into a rural school up in the Appalachian mountains
of Kentucky, a school in Knott County, Cordia High School. This is
a school that is so far back you really have to make an incredible
effort to find it.

I walked into this school, which is over 100 years old, built into
the side of the mountain. We had a satellite dish on that school
that we had just recently put on, and there were three youngsters
who were taking an advanced mathematics course that we were of-
fering. I spoke with one of the young ladies who was taking that
course, and she told me that because she had grown up in eastern
Kentucky, because all she had heard about was how poor the
schools there were and how low test scores were of youngsters in
that region, she had assumed that she could never compete with
other youngsters, and there was no thought that she would ever go
to college. She said, “Becavse of this course, I realized that I really
understood mathematics, that 1 had ability because 1 could answer
those questions before those kids in New dJersey could.” And she
said, “As & result of that, my confidence level got built up, 1 ap-
plied to the university, I was accepted, I've got a scholarship, and 1
am lg,;;oing to the university this fall and 1 amn going to major in
math.”

That little girl 1 day could be one of our country’s outstanding
scientists. And that is why I am in this business, and that is why [
believe that in public television we are always going to remain
committed to reaching these kinds of youngsters, and we'll use
wha}:ever technology and whatever techniques are necessary to get
to them.

In conclusion 1 just want to say thank you to Congress for fund-
ing public television's new satellite system. We will be launching
the satellite—actually, AT&T will—in 2 years. It is going to have
tremendous interactive capability for education, and the reason 1
came to PBS 6 months ago was to help public television develop
those educationa! applications so that we can go way beyond where
we are today in reaching the teachers and the youngsters of this
country who need us the most and providing them the kinds of op-
portunities that 1 described that we provided this young girl in
eastern Kentucky.

Following up some of your earlier questions, I too am very eager
to find out about the resources and directions of the Department of
Education. A group of us in public broadcasting will be meeting
with Secretary Alexander this afternoon to learn more about that,
and we are also meeting very soon with the staff over at the Na-
tional Science Foundation, because obviously these rescurces
should be as widely available as possible, and through public televi-
sion we have and will have in the future a very extensive delivery
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system, capable of making sure that these resources are widely
known and widely used.

Thank you so much.

{The prepared statement of Ms. Welch follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SANDRA H. WELCH

We at the Public Broadcasting Service are extremely appreciative of the opportu-
nity to appear before you today and discuss PBS and public television's commitment
to serving the educational needs of this nation. ..

For more than 30 years, public television has expanded educational opportunities
for all Americans, of all ages with quality commercial-free educational program-
ming and locally responsive support services. Our commitment to education has
never been stronger nor more important.

The real importance and power of public television is Jest demonstrated by the
people who have used it to overcome personal obsiacles and gain new opportunities
for themselves. These people are living proof of the educational power of public tele-
vision. Each of them represent millions of others in this country, in your own com-
munities whom we can reach and teach.

Public television now operates the most comprehensive educational delivery
system in the nation. Thanks to you and your colleagues in the United States
Senate public television will be technically equipped to deliver interactive voice,
dataaand video services to help meet the education needs of the nation into the next
decade.

Congressional funding has enabled PBS to purchase six transponders on AT&T’s
TELSTAR 401 satellite, which will begin service in 1993, and to purchase the neces-
sary eciuipment to provide interactive voice, data, and video services. PBS remains
hopeful that TELSTAR 401 may emerge as the “educational satellite” and become
the communications hub for a variety of educational services to be offered to the
education community.

Recent developments in digital video com pression, which will greatly expand sat-
ellite communications channel capacity, combined with public television's VSAT
(very small aperture terminall communications network offer the potential for
many innovative educational services, some yet unimagined.

We are now considering whether public television might be able to provide inter-
active educational programming channels edicated to specific subjects. For exam-
ple, there could be a channel devoted to basic math, one to science, another to liter-
acy instruction, or music instruction, or teacher training. And what if every teacher
and student could send and receive data nationwide using this system. We have an
opportunity to develop TELSTAR into a tremendously pewerful learning tool.

Over the next several months PBS and its member sta.ions wil! be working vigor-
ously to set the course for these activities and make them a reality. A major chal-
lenge for us all will be finding the financial resources to fulfill our educational mis-
sion.

PBS will use some of its limited education funds to conduct research and develop-
ment activitiis and will be asking stations to contribute funds as well. But it will
take a substantial financial investment to fund the planning, acquisition, and pro-
duction of programming and supplementary teacher/student educational materials,
as well as the associated operations, to assure the realization of these services.
Many stations will find it difficult to even think about participating without addi-
tional federal financial support. As you are probably aware, the financial prospects
of many public television stations acrous the country are best described as grim.

Today our broadcasts deliver an array of educational programs to 100 million chil-
dren, youth, and adults each month in their homes, child-care centers, workplaces,
schools, and other settings. Three out of every four students in elementary and sec-
ondary schools use our targeted instructional programs. And two out of three col-
leges actively use our adult learning programs, enrolling over a quarter of a million
students this year alone in our courses, far more students than any other education-
al service provider.

In a recent study commissioned by cable television which was conducted by a pro-
fessor at Columbia University, 56 percent of teachers surveyed said that public tele-
vision was the source for the highest quality educational programs, followed by Arts
& Entertainment with 16 percent and the Disney Channel with 15 percent. In terms
of actual teacher usage, public television led with 55 percent, followed by the Cable
News Network with 12 percent and A&F Classroom with 11 percent.
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Our reach has grown each year because public broadcasters are delivering service
to the education community and America's students not only by means of terrestri-
al broadcast but also by ITFS (instructional fixed television service), cable, and sat-
ellite channels, as well as by videocassette, videodiscs, and computer software.

Public television helps prepare children to start school ready to learn. Program-
ming for pre-schoolers is one of public television's greatest strengths. For almost 25
years we have been meeting the needs of children, as we broadcast daily programs
such as MR. ROGERS and SESAME STREET throughout the country, completely
commercial free and available to almost all American children at no cost. Next year
our preschool programming will increase with the addition of several new series:
gﬁg{lvEY AND THE BACKYARD GANG and THE SHARI AND THE LAMBCHOP

We are also beginning to provide much more than television programs and are
making childcare teacher guides, parent guides, magazines, and other learning ma-
terials available. Some of our new initiatives include Children Television Work-
shop's Preschool Education Project and South Carolina’s plans for the early child-
hood professional development network.

Our inventory of math and science programs is unparalleled. 3-2-1 CONTACT
has recently been repackaged into 15-minute programs with specialized teacher/stu-
dent materials for classroom use that will become available this fall. The series FU-
TURES, featuring Jaime Escalante, the remarkable East Los Angeles math teacher,
is successfully turning kids onto math. Ongoing prime-time series like SCIENTIFIC
AMERICAN FRONTIERS, and NOVA, as well as limited series like THE SHAPE
OF THE WORLD, and THE ASTRONOMERS all have excellent teacher guides, and
many have student activity sheets and other materials that are being used exten-
sively in math and science classrooms across the country.

Public television is also bringing the country’s finest math and science teachers
live via satellite into many rural and disadvantaged school districts. The Satellite
Educational Resources Consortium (SERC) is offering calculus, physics, and ad-
vanced math courses to high school students in twenty-three (23) states,

We are also helping to train teachers. WNET's Texaco Teacher Training Institute,
Louisiana's algebra series, and West Virginia's use of the MECHANICAL UNI-
VERSE to train physics teachers are «..amples of the public television’s efforts all
across the country to help improve math and science teachers’ skills. Public televi-
sion is also providing teachers with other resources such as LEARNING LINK, a
computer information service that offers teachers information and help in using
public television programs as well as the ability to share teaching materials and
ideas with other teachers all across the country.

Public television is also helping our youth to stay in school and graduate, and our
schools to be free of drugs and violence. ALL OUR CHILDREN with Bill Moyers
looked at ways to help children at risk. The Public Television Outreach Alliance has
spearheaded mentoring and family projects. WTVS-Detroit is a powerful example of
how a public television station committed to serving its community can lead local
efforts to provide its young people with opportunities to help them become success-
ful citizens.

Public television is also contributing to the goal of assuring that every adult
American is literate, through community outreach efforts such Project Literacy U.S.
(PLUS) as well as the broadcast of instructional programs such as LEARN TO
READ and GED ON TV. Oklahoma Educational Television just last week an-
nounced the launch of a second television service—-the Literacy Channel—to serve
viewers of all ages with new creative educational programming.

Public television also offers adults ongoing opportunities for education through
our college programming. Prime-time series, such as THE CIVIL WAR and EYES
ON THE PRIZE, were of value not only to the millions of viewers watching during
prime time, but also to the thousands who were learning and earning college cred-
its. More than 250,000 adult students nationwide earned college credits this year
through our programming.

Public television also brings the issues in American education to the American
public, showing how problems in education affect the health of our nation, profiling
schools where change and reform are succeeding, und promoting discussion and
action at the local level. For example, during the week of September 1 through 6
this fall public television will broadcast 9 hours of prime-time programming that
will bring the education challenges facing the nation to the attention of viewers at
home. These viewers include parents, business leaders, and government leaders.
Many stations are also producing local programs and holding town meetings focus-
ing on the specific education issues of greatest concern to local communities.
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We at PBS and in public television are intent on finding solutions to the obstacles
that now limit the educational use of many of the programs in the National Pro-
gram Service. We have new initiatives underway to secure the appropriate educa-
tional rights to facilitate telecourse development and reversioning of programs into
new forms for school use. We are also examining new ways to extend the impact of
the National Program Service through distance learning.

We are also developing new strategies for producing, funding, promoting and de-
livering new educational services. My primary reason for coming to PBS was to help
develop new educational services that stations can offer to local schools, colleges,
businesses, and viewers.

Public television has the expertise, the technical capacity, and the commitment to
enable the creation of a whole new world of educational opportunities for every
American in this country. But we need your help to make that possible. If we are
bold, if we are imaginative, and if we really care, public television will help make
America competitive again through the educational power of television.

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you.

Ms. Welch, I believe you said you reach 30 million students,
three out of four. In what way do you reach these students? I
mean, are there that many students out there who are actually
taking courses that you broadcast? You don’t reach 30 million in
the same way that Whittle reaches 6 million. Whittle has 6 million
students there, viewing their news program every day.

Ms. Welch. No, it is quite different in that our programs are

"made available through our local public television stations—mean-
ing they may be broadcast by the station, they may be carried bg a
cable channel, they may be coming in through a satellite dish, but
they are coming in, and teachers themselves are deciding which
programs they want to use, when they want to use them and how
they want to use them.

. The reason we know that 30 million students are being reached
1s that we survey periodically the schools. Our member stations
help conduct these surveys, and we find out that over the course of
the year on the average, teachers are using some of this wide scope
and range of programs. So it is not that we have 30 million en-
rolled in a formal high school course, but we’ve got 30 million stu-
dents, some of whom are using our science series such as ““3-2-1-
Contact”; some may be using our history programs like the Civil
War. That does include some who are taking the advanced calculus
course that I described, and so on.

. Senator BINGAMAN. But if I am that biology teacher I was talk-
ing about before, and I wanted to take advantage of something that
public broadcasting is doing, do I have to first of all determine if it
1s going to he broadcast in the area that I live, and if it is, find out
when that is and make arrangements to get the video equipment to
record that and then make arrangements to get the video equip-
ment and the TV in my classroom to show it—I mean, I've got to
do lftl‘} of that myself as the high school biology teacher; is that
right?

Ms. Welch. As Linda said to you earlier, it can vary from place
to place, but let me give you a specific :xample of how it worked in
Kentucky.

We broadcast programs that your biology teacher would want to
use, very specific programs for those biology units. We published a
schedule every year that was mailed to every school, and every
teacher got a copy. So you would get a copy of the schedule from
your local public television station KET. ’I‘%ere would be a section
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that would say “biology”’ that would tell you exactly what we were
going to have available and when; it would indicate that there
were teacher guides for all of those lessons, and it would indicate
on their if you want a guide, just fill out this form and mail it in,
and we will mail you the guide back.

When you wanted to use those programs, you would check with
your public television building liaison because we at KET would go
into every school and say we want someone here to be the facilita-
tor, to help teachers make sure that they have the TV set, to make
sure that they either have a VCR in their classroom, or that the
media center has the VCRs and will play the programs when you
want to use them. Then every year we would also survey you and
ask what did you think of those biology programs that we offered
this year—4id they really work for your kids; are they current; are
there other programs that you would like for us to offer? And then
the next year, we'd use your feedback to try to give you an even
better service.

That’s the ideal, and that exists in a lot of schools where there is
as public television station nearby.

Senator BINGAMAN. But I guess I still have to conclude that in
these schools, you have indicated you now have a satellite dish at
each high school in Kentucky.

Ms. Welch. Yes.

Senator BINGAMAN. Does that also mean you have all the other
equipment that Whittle is talking about in those high schools, and
that they have televisions in the classrooms, and they have VCRs
with which to record what comes through the TVs?

Ms. Welch. In Kentucky, we are probably better-equipped than
many other States. I would guess that in most schools and a lot of
our schools do have a set in every classroom. But then we have
those disadvantaged schools that still don’t have enough television
sets, and overall in the country, absolutely, there are not enough
television sets, and that is one of the biggest obstacles teachers face
to using our prograriming or anyone else’s programming. And that
is what obviously made the Whittle program so incredibly popular
with teachers. They are hungry; they are desperate to get new tele-
vision sets in their own classroom and not have to share with other
teachers.

Senator BINGAMAN. So is it fair to say that while the Federal
Government, through support for public broadcasting, has done
something to provide the resource that is needed—the Federal Gov-
ernment has done very little, other than through the Star Schools
it;rogram in very selected places, to provide the so-called “light-

ulbs” that Ms. Eshbaugh was talking about. I mean, you've got
the electricity, but nobody has a lightbulb.

Ms. Welch. That's correct.

Senator BINGAMAN. And that’s what Whittle is providing.

Ms. Welch. They are, and yet I think we must recognize that
they have gone into 9,000 schools, and those teachers are very, very
happy, but there are approximately 100,000 schools. So there are
90,000 schools that don’t have a TV set in every, single classroom,
or only a very few of them. So I think we realf‘; do %ave to think
about and look at those schools that Whittle is not serving at this
time that really do need that equipment as well.
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Senator BINGAMAN. Mr. Rowe, as I understand what CNN is
doing, you folks also are providing what you consider a useful re-
source, but you are doing that in the sense that you are broadcast-
ing it through your cable system.

Mr. Rowe. That’s correct.

Senator BINGAMAN. And then it is still left to the local teacher to
figure out how to get the equipment to take advantage of that serv-
ice and to use that service in the instruction.

Mr. Rowe. That's right. And we are finding more and more as
cable operating companies have become active in this cable in the
classroom effort across the country that they are taking great steps
forward in terms of helping to provide schools with basic equip-
ment where none exists or where there are hardships, to provide
teacher training, resources, information about all of the program-
ming that is available by cable. And that effort is building. It will
take a while for it to penetrate every school in the Nation.

Senator BINGAMAN. But is that just that the cable companies are
donating equipment to schools? Is that what you are suggesting?

Mr. Rowe. Some are, yes, and it is important to remember that
all of the cable companies participating in this project have
pledged free basic cable service. No one has calculated the dollar
value of that service to schools, but it would be substantial across
time.

Now, we do survey equipment needs in schools and what schools
have. A company called Quality Education Data in Denver has
been measuring these things for many years, and they are begin-
ning to see an incredible takeoff in terms of the amount of equip-
ment that is in schools.

The CNN NEWSROOM-enrolled schools have on average at least
six VCRs and nine TV sets in the school buildings already, and
that number is growing.

There is no controversy about the most successful audiovisual
medium in schools, the chalkboard—they are everywhere. The
were part of the old Industrial Age model of what a school needed.
We are only just beginning to turn the corner and understand that
what schools also need is a way to see the world through that elec-
tronic window called the TV screen.

Now, I don’t think there is as much controversy about television
among educators now as they are beginning to see it us a utility
and will demand to have it, and we need to help them.

Senator BINGAMAN. Ms. Eshbaugh, you indicated, I believe, that
your arrangement with the school districts that you have contracts
which permits them to use this equipment and this network for
anything that is not in competition with Channel One. Do you con-
sider CNN in competition with Channel One?

Ms. EsuBauGH. We do not, because while certainly their program
carries an identification for CNN, it doesn’t have commercials per
se.

Senator BINGaMAN. So if ‘a teacher who is in one of your schools,
a school that you have a contract with, wants to hook their system
up the cable and record from the cable the CNN NEWSROOM and
show that, you do not object to that?

Ms. EsuBAUGH. Certainly not.
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Senator BiINGaMAN. OK, you don’t see that as interfering. And
the same thing with public broadcasting—is there any reason that
anything in your contractual arrangement that keeps a school dis-
trict or & teacher from using your equipment to record and play
back public broadcasting?

Ms. EsuBauGH. Not at all; in fact we facilitate that. Just to use
Kentucky as an example, we currently have over 280 schools in
Kentucky, middle and high schools, that are participating in our
programs, which says that at least in those schools there was cer-
tainly a need for the television equipment as a resource. And cer-
tainly that facilitates the use of public broadcasting, of cable pro-
gramming, and of distance learning resources.

At the beginning of last year, the Gallup organization conducted
a poll of classroom teachers at the middle and high school levels,
and according to that poll, 85 percent of the teachers did not have
a television set in any classroom that they taught in during the
course of the day. And in the larger schools, there was an even
greater lack; it was up in the 90 percent range.

What we provide the schools are television sets generally in
every classroom in a school. We also provide easy access for bring-
ing a VCR into the classroom because we can have an easy connect
so that the teacher can quite easily show the programming in her
own classroom without having to go check out equipment and dis-
cover whether it is working or not.

We provide the equipment, we maintain it, and they have free
use of the equipment during all except the 12 minutes of the day
that Channel One is shown.

Senator BINGAMAN. I assume the contract that Whittle signs
with the local school districts provides that the equipment is there
for the use of the school as long as the contract remains in effect.

Ms. EsuBAUGH. Yes, sir.

Senator BINGAMAN. So that if in fact a school determines not to
continue to show your programs, them you take the “lightbulb”

away.

Mz. EsuBaUGH. Yes, that certainly could happen, although the
wiring, which is of course an important component here, does
remain in the school. They may continue to use the wiring, so they
could in effect hook up their own televisions should they withdraw
from the program.

Senator BiNGaMAN. OK. Let me ask a question on a whole differ-
ent sort of issue here. Is there a value or is there an appropriate
role for the government in monitoring what is going out on any of
these programs? Is that a concern that has been raised? I don’t
know. It just strikes me that, for example, if Whittle has 6 million
kids sitting there watching your news program every day, I guess
as a person in the golitical realm, I would like to be conﬁ);lent that
:}}:e (clontent is not biased in one way or another on major issues of

e day.
thvg‘l,)at do you think the proper role of government is to assure

at?

Ms. EsuBauch. Well, first of all, let me tell you a little bit about
who actually controls the programming on Channel One. We have
a very professional news staff that puts the programming together.
We have various panels of educator advisors who oversee that. At
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the school level, the program is automatically recorded before 6:00
each morning. We provide the school with a preview monitor so
that the media librarian, the principal, or some other designated
representative of the school can easily preview the programming
before it is aired. And by the way, the programming does not have
to be aired all at one time, although that is in fact the convenient
way to show the programming.

Then firally, in every classroom there are on-off buttons, and
there is a plug where the television is plugged into the wall. So in
effect the programming is controlled and monitored ultimately by
the classroom teacher. If she finds something inappropriate, then
there is always an on-off button.

There are over 3,500 school districts that have thus far adopted
Channel One, approved it for use in their schools, and in the course
of doing that we personally have been involved in over 30,000 town
meetings where the curriculum has been debated, where people
have dealt with the question of is advertising appropriate for the
schools, in public fora. So there has been a good bit of public policy
input into the adoption of these programs.

At the local level, I believe that local government through the
school board that has approved the programming for use and obvi-
ously is responsible to the local constituents for seeing that the ap-
p}:opriate things are happening in their schools are accountabfe
there.

So in a sense this is no different than other textbooks that are
adopted locally and are at a statewide level. So I think perhaps it
may be helpful toc view these resources in the context of other cur-
riculum materials where State and local guidelines are really what
has thus far governed ratk..r than national.

Senator BINGAMAN. Now, taking that analogy to textbooks, I be-
lieve the arrangement in my home state in New Mexico is that
textbooks have to be approved by the State Board of Education.
Shouldn’t the State Board of Education have to approve some way
or other, or have some oversight and ability to monitor and control
what is broadcast into the schools as well?

Ms. EsuBAUGH. Generally, even in those States where that may
happen, schools b~ve a lot of flexibility in terms of what they bring
into the classroc:n as supplemental resources. This may be in the
form of magazines such as Scholastic magazine, whicﬂ also con-
tains advertisements, newspaper in the classroom programs which
are used on a regular basis in schools all across the country, and
television resources.

So we would consider Channel One to be one of those supplemen-
tal resources. It crosses curricula, so it probably doesn’t tit within
the part‘cular guidelines that are applied at the State level.

Senator BINGAMAN. So you don’t think that the same kind of
oversight is required for broadcasts that would be for textbooks?

Ms. EsuBaucH. Well, again, I believe that this is supplemental.

Senator BiNcAMAN. It supplements the cvrriculum; it is not part
of the curriculum.

Ms. EsuBaucGH. Exactly. Now, I Lelieve in Texas fairly recently
the State board there approved the use of a software program in
the ccience area as curriculur, o0 it was an entire course of study
delivered via software. And I think that is a different situation,
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and certainly, if software or electronic programming is being used
as a curriculum, then it should fit whatever appropriate standards
there are at the State level.

Senator BincamaN. OK. Mr. Rowe, did you have any thoughts
about whether government should be doing more to oversee or
monitor what is being broadcast into our schools?

Mr. Rowe. I think that the guarantor of the quality of our pro-
gram is really the teacher. That is because CNN NEWSROOM does
not have to be shown to anybody on any given day in a school. It is
always an educator who makes the decision about what is relevant
to use and what is not.

I recall prior to the launch of our program a meeting that I had
with the committee of the board of regents in Albany, NY. A public
broadcasting executive there literally almost pounded the tabletop
as he said, “Give our kids the real news.” And that’s in fact what
we try to do. We don’t try to sort of “dumb down” the news or refa-
shion it to appeal to younger minds. We try to exhibit the world as
it is. And the guarantor for the quality of that, I believe, doesn’t
come from government but from the millions of citizens around the
world who watch us every day and the legions of TV critics who
are ready to pounce on us if we don’t do the right thing.

Senator BincaMaN. I will undoubtedly think of other questions
as we get further down the road, but that’s what occurs to me right
now. So let me thank all of you for being here.

Why don’t we just have a five-minute break before we start the
final panel, and then we’ll get going again.

[Recess.]

Senator BINGAMAN. We'll come to order.

The final panel includes Mr. Frank Mankiewicz, who is now vice
chairman of Hill and Knowlton and has a long and distinguished
career in public broadcasting of various kinds, and Mr. Gary Tyd-
ings, who used to work with me here in the Senate and is now ex-
ecutive director of professional engineering development and in-
structional television at the University of New Mexico.

Mr. Mankiewicz, thank you for coming.

STATEMENTS OF FRANK MANKIEWICZ, VICE CHAIRMAN, HILL
AND KNOWLTON PUBLIC AFFAIRS WORLDWIDE, WASHINGTON,
DC AND GARY TYDINGS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, PROFESSION-
AL ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT AND INSTRUCTIONAL TELE-
VISION, UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO, ALBUQUERQUE, NM

Mr. MaNkiewicz. Thank you, Senator.

I will try to paraphrase my testimony as I go and put it in the
record, if I may.

Senator BiNgamaN. That would be great.

Mr. Mankiewicz. What I primarily wanted to address were some
of the concerns about the uses of commercial television in educa-
tional television, particularly the Channel One experiment that is
one of the foci of the discussion this morning.

The question, of course, is how television can best be used, and
let me say first of all that as an executive of Hill and Knowlton
Public Affairs, I want to make it very clear that we have no client
interest here, no dog in this fight; in fact, I have no idea who the
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Channel One sponsors are and made it a point not to review the
list. These are really my independent views based on my experi-
ence and judgment and not as an executive of that company.

The interesting thing, Mr. Chairman, that I think we want to
look at at the outset is that young adults in the United States
today know less about world affairs than probably any other gen-
eration certainly in the last half century and probably in our histo-
ry. That is a very damaging assessment particularly as public af-
fairs, world affairs, and domestic affairs become more complex.
One would have thought that the trend would be ir the other di-
rection, but Americans 18 to 30 are less likely to watch news on
television or to read a newspaper than their counterparts in previ-
ous generations and accordingly they are less capable of identifying
newsmakers and less interested in current affairs.

The astonishing figures we saw a couple of days ago on the de-
cline in newspaper revenues are a direct function of a decline in
newspaper readership. Young people today do not subscribe to a
newspaper automatically when they start a family or begin a work
career, as I think they used to a generation ago. More and more
the trend that Walter Cronkite noted with such unhappiness 15
years ago, when he noted that 50 percent of Americans got all
their news from television, and 75 percent got most of their news
from television. Those figures have gone steadily up along with a
general decline in viewership. So that I think it is safe to say that
more people are watching less and certainly reading less.

And ignorance combined with apathy is probably the most dan-
gerous thinf we confront. I remember a vivid description of the
power of television, certainly confirmed by hundreds and perhaps
by now thousands of studies that I looked at in the course of writ-
ing a book about television in 1977, was an account by Jerzy Ko-
sinski, National Book Award winner, who spent some years as a
teacher in a public middle school early in his career. He fitted up
his classroom with a television monitor, and as he would speak to
the children, the camera would be on him, and the children could
either watch him live, or watch the monitor. And almost all of
them chose to watch the monitor while he was lecturing, talking,
giving examples, writing on the blackboard. Then, by prearrange-
ment, he hired another adult actor to burst into the room, begin to
argue with him, and then begin to fight with him. And they were
punching each other and rolling on the floor and appearing to do
considerable damage to each other. And while all this was going
on, the children were not watching the live event; they were watch-
ing it on the monitor because it seemed more real to them to see it
on television. That kind of example can be fcand in the research
literature about the impact of television on young people, repeated
and repeated » that what we have is a medium of rummunica-
tion, Mr. Chaii:nan, which in some instances is more real than real
life itself. Now, whether that is good or bad is worth a lot of study,
but it is certainly a reality, and ther» is 1 need to harness it if we
are going to go to the question of ignor:.nce and apathy that con-
fronts us.

Educators now come to believe that reading is readily replaced,
as we heard in testimony earlier, by visual techniques—a shift, per-
haps, from right brain to left brain—and for reasons, really, which
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can be put simply as “If you can't beat it, join it.” An examination
of scholarly literature on the subject 15 years ago showed such no-
tions had been introduced in the Nation’s schools in the Sixties and
Seventies as a response to children whose orientation is visual. But
most teachers’ use of visual techniques has been for the most part
limited, sometimes reluctant, but always limited by the amount of
equipment available and in some cases a rearguard action against
a force far beyond their control.

The editors at the New Republic talked about the ear of educa-
tional television in 1989 when they looked at Channel One’s begin-
ning and said: “The cheapest shot being directed at Channel One is
the assertion of guilt by association with television. There is noth-
ing wrong with using television educationally, as long as it works,
and current events is probably better suited to the medium than
most subjects.”

Even the Children’s Television Workshop, the producers of
“Sesame Street”, understood very early that children are accus-
tomed to seeing commercials, and they produced “Sesame Street”
in the form of a8 commercial television program, so that it would
say, for example, this portion of “Sesame Street” is brought to you
by the figure “4” or by the letter “C”, and then they would give
some examples of it, as though they were pausing to show a com-
mercial, because children even at the “Sesame Street” age had
been accu'turated to pause in the course of learninug or acquiring
information in order to get a different kind of message of a com-
mercial form.

Channel One represents in this way, I think, the best of the con-
cepts that we have seen and examined as to how to get through to
children in this age. It is not age-specific but it is informative and
abundant. Children will see it, and the message will have some
impact. And best of all, as your discussion with the previous wit-
ness demonstrated, they put a TV set in each classroom with a
VCR, fully-equipped, so that it can go to cable, it can go to all kinds
of communications methods, and the news program comes right
into that classroom, and there is no question of trying to read an
annual guide to see which programs one might want 3 months
from now or 2 months from now or 6 months from now. The set is
there, and the program is there very day. That is an enormous ad-
vantage over I think almost anything else.

I think the capture of Channel One’s captive audience with a tel-
evision message 2 minutes out of the 12 that the program is on is
not a bad thing. It is not as though they are learning the values of
satanic worship or the degradation of women or how to operate an
automatic weapon. They are taking a short period out of the day to
see what is happening in the country and the rest of the world, and
a short commercial message aa well. It is not, after all, unknown to
high school students to see a commercial message.

xperiments have found that just a short, 30-second commercial
selling pro-social behavior is sufficient to change children’s playing
habits, at least according to the expert of experts, Robert Keesham,
better known as “Captain Kangaroo”, whose knowledge of what
children want on television is probably unsurpassed.

In addition, just to conclude, there is a series of programming
worked on some years ago in the Philadelphia schools, using televi-
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sion to help children not learn things that are on television as
much as to read. Two educators in Philadelphia prevailed on some
Hollywood producers to provide them not only with old TV shows
in cassette form, but also the scripts for those programs. Then they
would show the programs and give the students the scripts and
allow the students to follow the script as the program was played,
to read the script before the program was played, to play the parts,
to be the various characters on such really rather nonlearning pro-
grams as “Gilligan’s Island” perhaps, or some of the other early
television staples. But the students were so eager to play a role
that they would learn to read the script, and that script reading
and role-playing and the use of those programs proved to be an
enormously valuable tool in teaching students to read, and the in-
crease in literacy was enormous.

So it seems to me that television in the classroom has a signifi-
cant role to play. It has helped reading scores in that way. I think
perhaps Channel One ought to look at the question of interaction,
or the question perhaps of talking about the news program after it
is on the air. The teacher, after all, has a significant role to play
here. I understand a lot of schools play the Whittle Communica-
tions Channel One program in home room and do not use it as the
basis for further discussion in a social studies class, which I think
probably would be a good deal better. But with a good teacher,
Channel One becomes a strong addition to classroom instruction,
and a captivating learning tool.

Research, Mr. Chairman, indicates that the average child sees
200,000 television commercials by the time he reaches the age of
18. If that child were watching television every day for 18 years—
and that is likely—that would mean an average of over 30 commer-
cials a day. So the 2 minutes additional to which he or she might
be subject in the classroom seems to me not to be a significant ad-
dition to the television diet and probably on balance even a helpful
one.

There is already advertising in schools, Coca-Cola signs on the
scoreboard, signs on the little league fences, donated book covers,
logos. There is a lot of advertising in the schoolroom, and I think
without great damage.

I think this all has a splendid potential for learning as well as
profit, and I wish Channel One and its sponsors well.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Mankiewicz follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF FRANK MANKIEWICZ

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee,

Thank you very much for the invitation to testify before the panel this morning
and to address some of the concerns about uses of commercial television in educa-
tion, particularly the Channel One “ experiment” we are looking at today.

I am here this morning, not so much as an expert in the field of education, but
more perhaps as a former journalist, broadcaster and an author and long-time ob-
server of ways Americans respond to television. Today I suppose we are talking
about responsible use of that power—in the form of television—and its influence in
helping educate young people.

I also want to say, for the record, that so far as I am aware, in my present posi-
tion as vice chairman of Hill and Knowlton Public Affairs Worldwide, we do not
have a “dog in this fight,” nor any client interest. In fact, I specifically made a point
not to review a list of Channel One sponsors. Instead, I want to give you my inde-
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ﬁandent views, those views based on my experience and judgment, and not that of
ill and Knowlton nor any other corporate or business interest.

According to a recent study I recall commissioned by Times Mirror, the company
that publishes the Los Angeles Times and owns several other media outlets, young
adults in the United States today know less about world affairs than any other gen-
eration in the p:st half century.

Americans 18 to 30 are lessr{ikely to watch the news on television or read a news-
paper than their counterparts from previous generations. Accordingly, they are less
capable of identifying newsmakers, and are less interested in current affairs.

The authors ol’v the study appropriately named their work ‘“The Age of Indiffer-
ence.” They might have called it “The Age of Television.”

Knowledge of current events and hard news often spurs curiosity in a young
mind, acting as a catalyst for more learning,

On the other side, ignorance combined with apathy is always a dangerous thing.
Such an appalling ignorance of world affairs could cost us what remains of our pre-
eminent leadership position.

A blackboard and a piece of chalk will not always make an impression on teen-
agers today. Why not make use of every modern tool at our disposaF?

None of these conclusions, I admit, are particularly new nor wholly original. I did,
however, co-author a book over 10 years ago, Remote Control, to raise some of the
issues concerning the place television plays in our lives.

Many of the instances I recounted in Remote Control in 1978 may be applicable to
Mr. Whittle’s advances in classroom education. Let me cite one fascinating anecdote
about the perception children have about TV:

“National Book Award winner Jerzy Kosinski recalls . . . one of the experiences
he had while teaching public school. Kosinski invited a group of 7-to-10 year olds to
sit in a large classroom and hear him tell a story. The room was equipped with tele-
vision cameras and monitors 8o the children could either watch him or see him on
television. Suddenly, by pre-arrangement, another adult burst into the room and
started to argue with Kosinski, pushing and hitting him. A third camera recorded
the children's reactions. Not one child voiced a protest, and only a few watched it
really happening. The rest kept their eyes glued to the television monitors.”

What this says to me is that we have developed a medium of communication
which, in some instances, is more “real” than real life itself. Whether this is a good
or bad thing, it is reality.

Why not face up to it and find ways to harness it? I am not suggesting television
Rrogramming as the sole means of education any more than Mr. Whittle is. I do,

owiver, see substantial merit in the use of television as an educational supple-
ment.

The steady decline in test scores has been countered—in the past decade--by
changes in the direction of teaching children based on aural as opposed to written
techniques. In other words, teachers have frequently adapted their classroom tech-
niques in order better to reach a student body trained since its earliest days to pick
up messages and information from what is heard rather than from what is
read. . . . Why would educators come to believe that reading is ready to be replaced
by visual techniques? For one reason—put bluntly—if you can't beat it, join it. An
examination of scholarly literature on the subject 15 years ago should such notions
had been introduced into the nation's schools in the 1960’s and 1970’s as a response
to children whose orientation is visual. But most teachers' use of visual techniques
has been, for the most part, limited and reluctant, a rear-guard action against a
force far beyond their control.

It is time to take the fear out of educational television. The editors at the New
Republzc put it simply in 1989, when they looked at Channel One's launch:

‘“The cheapest shot being directed at Channel One is the assertion of guilt by asso-
ciation with television. There's nothing wrong with using TV educationally, so long
as it works, and current events is pro ablg better suited to the medium than niost
suﬂects.”—The New Republic, April 10, 1989.

How has television been used so far in education? Those with children or grand-
children know well the benefits of public television's Sesame Street and Mister-
ogers. We have seen first hand that televisions can be used for instruction—and
learning—at very young ages.

From the outset, Children’s Television Workshop planners decided to medel their
program after patterns already embedded in the minds of the members of the Tele-
vision Generation by the commercial networks and their advertising clients. “Why
shouldn’t teaching be done with the sophisticated and entertaining techniques of
commercial television, especially the commercials?’ asked Ms. (Sesame Street
founder Joan Ganz) Cooney. The chief academic adviser, Harvard education special-

B




54

ist Gerald S. Lesser, explained that CTW decided to take advantage of commercial
market research on what holds children's attention, “Change of pace and style,
catchy jingles and rhymes, broad comedic devices, and short, simple, straightfor.
ward presentations.”

Channel One represents, in many ways, the best of the concepts I have described.
It is not age-specific, but it is informative and abundant—children will see it, and its
message will have some impact.

This is why I think the capture of Channel One's ‘“captive” audience is not a bad
thing. It is not as if they are learning the values of Satanic worship, the degradation
of women or how to operate an automatic weapon. They are taking a short period
out of their day to see what is happening in our country and the rest of the world,
and that can only be a positive development.

Sesame Street and its sister and offspring programs are not the lone pioneers in
the forefront of children’s educational television. Consider the excellent work of
Fred Rogers, a pioneer all of us so-called experts point to:

He is the example most cited when educators and child specialists argue that the
power of television should neither be cursed nor ignored, but turned to pro-social
purposes. Experiments have found that just - short 30-second commercial “selling”
vro-sacial behavior is sufficient to change children’s plaging habits. Robert Kee-

am, better known as the ageless Captain Kangaroo of CBS, feels that the medium

the most potent home molder of children. The right children’s programs, he says,
could “change the face of the earth.”

Will Channel One change the face of the earth? Prcbably not, but it may make
our corner of the earth a slightly more informed place.

Channel One is not about educating little chifdren. though. It is about teens in
our school system. Here are some examples of successful predecessors in the 1970’s:

An exciting idea was worked out by Philadelphia Superintendent of Schools Mi-
chael Marcase and his colleagues Bernard Solomon and Michael McAndrew. The
educators edited the film, “The Vanishing Shadow,” a 1934 movie matinee serial,
interposed slow-motion and stop-action sequences, voice-overs, and superimposed
words. A television station in Jacksonville, Florida made it into a television series,
then—and the episodes were broadcast nightly on a . egular commercial channel for
3 weeks during the school year in Jacksonville. Students were instructed to take
their scripts home and follow along, reading as they watched. The next day, the
class discussed what happened in the episode the night before—and the next eve-
nings script was ready in the classroom,

“Dr. George Mason, of the English Department of the University of Georgia, sur-
veyed the Jacksonville teachers involvedp after the first 3-week program was broad-
cast. The teachers reported “real and significant” increases in the students’ vocabu-
lary and an enhanced student interest in reading. Moreover, shy children who had
never previously volunteered in class now began to step forward. Some former D
students became the best readers in class . . .

“The Vanishing Shadow is not alone, although it seems to be the first to combine
classroom discussion, reading, and home viewing of television in any systematic
way. Another concept suggested and inspired by Drs. Marcase, McAndrew, and Solo-
mon is the use of videotapes and scripts of lgrograms like Gilligan's island, The
Rookies (an urban police program), and Kung Fu (a sort of Confucian Western, with
police action overtones) in the clacsr~m. If the classroom has a television monitor
and video cassette player, the stude. itch parts of the program; are instructed to
read along with the script; to act out . - episodes after viewing it, using the script
for that purpose; or use the script to produce their own version of the scene or the
entire program, and then observe how the “real” actors dealt with the words on the
printed page.

“Even egucators who consider this use of third-rate commercial programs to be at
best “gimmicky” have been forced to admit that the technique helps significantly to
improve reading scores. Public schools in Mount Vernon, New York, {ur example,
used these programs for 5 months, and then tested 28 students to determine the
impact. Nearl]):l 90 percent showed marked improvement in reading skills and more
than half of the students gained 2 years or more in reading levels in the 5 months
that this “third-rate” television had entered the classroom. The program helped
good readers as well as poor unes. One student's reading level rose four grades
during the 5 months. In Philadelphia, where the program originated, reading levels
of minority students were raised from low percentiles to the national norm."

Here perhaps is where I would find Channel One's deficiency a lack of participa-
tion and interaction. I understand there is a quiz at the end of each show—immedi-
ately atter the dreaded curnnarcials—but it is impossible for a television anchor to
lead a discussion about what the students have seen, and the discussion may be the
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most important part of the current events lesson. What if the subject needs a better
explanation? What if one kid just doesn't understand?

That of course, is when we have to rely on the old stand-by—the teacher. On it's
own, Channel One is 10 minutes of news and 2 minutes o commercials which a
child must sit through. With a good teacher, Channel One becomes a strong addi-
tion to classrcom instruction and a captivating learning tool.

Imagine the subjects a room full of 10th graders could broach if you gave them
the basic facts. Imagine the minds that might e touched for the first time. The up-
side of this concept is an informed youth. The downside is another pair of athletic
shoes sold through the classroom. Is that so bad?

One word about the advertising: Reliable research indicates the average child is
ex{)osed to more than 200,000 TV commercials by the time he or she reaches age 18.

f a child were to watch television every day of his or her life for 18 years, and
that is likely, that would mean an average of over 30 commercials a day. Two more
minutes probably will not cause many brains to crumble.

Remember, there is already advertising in schools-—Coca-Cola signs on the score-
board. donated book covers featuring company names and loges and emblems of
school equipment and supplies (IBM computers, a Rawlings baseball glove carries
six or seven messages).

In my opinion, this has a splendid potential—for learning as well as profit—and I
wish Channel One, and the children, every success.

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you for your testimony.

Gary, why don’t you go ahead?

Mr. TypinGs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I welcome the opportunity to talk about this important issue of
technology in the classroom. I think you have seen through previ-
ous testimony there is plenty of stuff out there, and there is a lot of
vi)tlality to it, and there are a lot of different options that are avail-
able.

I will come at from just a little bit different perspective as an
administrator of a program, and as in the case of a lot of States
around the United States, a lot of instructional television is univer-
sity-based toward the public school. That is the case in New
Mexico. The public television stations are licensed by universities
and are responsible to boards of regents.

That is the case at the University of New Mexico. It is a co-li-
censee of both the University of New Mexico and Albuquerque
public schools.

The university operations an eight-channel ITFS system, which
is Instructional Television Fixed Service, and it is a technology
that is designated by the Federal Communications System for edu-
cational programming. It is a closed system. It is addressable, very
similar to what a cable system has. The university offers about 50
to 60 live classes every semester for credit, mainly in the engineer-
ing, math and science fields, geared toward worksite delivery, and
we have about 600 students. In addition to ITFS, we use satellite
and fiber optic cable. So we use a mix of technologies. I am a firm
believer and have learned through experience that educational
technology works best when it is sort of totally transparent and
(ti.oes not get in the way of the learning process at any point in

ime.

We have several pretty successful programs using various tech-
nologies. I think because it has been established, and these are live
and interactive-—these are live classes that are taught real-time
and delivered to worksites where not only do the students out
there have the ability to tape the material and review it at their
leisure if they happen to miss the lecture—because this is worksite
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delivery, and a lot of people do travel—but they do have the oppor-
tunity through an audio interaction to talk to the professor in real-
time.

Our system has been in existence since 1985, and we have found
that people had a reticence to interrupt a professor while he is
doing a lecture, especially in these technical areas, but now we
have found after about 5 years that they chat a lot. There is not
only housekeeping going on, but there is a true interaction between
the professor and the students out there, of which there can be as
many as 30 to 40 different students scattered over various loca-
tions. In some cases, we go over to eastern Arizona and southern
Colorlado, including the State of New Mexico, with some of this ma-
terial.

We found it is a viable tool in providing and consolidating very,
very scarce resources. As you well know, in New Mexico, we have a
finite amount of money and a finite amount of resources that are
available for education, and we need to maximize those. We found
that instructional television is a great maximizer of those resources
and being able to put those resources where they are needed. You
are able to tap the expertise of various institutions and combine
them all into one sort of mix and use technology as a deliverable.

I'd like to expand the definition of instructional television just a
little bit to make it include I guess the word would be instructional
telecommunications, because it is in the public schools and in the
universities that are providing this material a mix. To be success-
ful, it is a mix, and it combines both the computer technology and
television.

There was testimony earlier about what the NSF is doing and
mention was made of this computer network. They have funded a
thing called SISCONET, where there are science teachers scattered
around in various locations, and they have access to some data-
bases. That is one area where the NSF specifically has played an
important role.

The Department of Interior and the BIA have funded something
callad BIA-NET, which connects contract schools in Arizona and
New Mexico to similar-type data access and similar-type databases.
It is used primarily for not only instructional purposes, but teacher
and service kinds of activities and just general information-sharing
amongst these schools.

As an administrator and as a former public school teacher who
used technology—and I will sort of echo what Mr. Mankiewicz said.
I had a similar kind of experience. I was a 9th grade teacher back
in the early Seventies when technology was real y pretty primitive.
But I conned the school principal into letting me buy, with some
funds, an old black and white Sony video camera and a video tape
recorder, an old reel-to-reel.

I set it up in the classroom, where I had some very bright stu-
dents on one side who wanted to create plays and things like that,
and then I had come other students who weren’t too interested in
doing too much, as is the case with about 70 to 80 percent of your
class that you usually have in a public school classroom.

So I tried something, and I tried it for about 3 weeks. I turned
the camera on, and I put it on a book, a short story. I had an over-
head shot of the camera; it was just on a piece of text. And I had
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one of my students who was willing to do it, turn the page at vari-
ous intervals, and tiiey would turn the page. If somebody was miss-
ing, they’d say, “I didn’t read that yet.” I put purposely the slow
readers and those who weren't too terribly interested in reading,
period, watching the monitor. They had the option of either looking
at the text and reading the story, or looking at the monitor. Well,
most preferred to look at the monitor, and it was a very passive
kind of thing other than, “You turned the page too fast.”

So we went through this whole process, and then I gave them a
little test after they read it—it was just a short story. Up to this
point they very seldom could ever tell me 1) what the story was
about, 2) who the characters were—basic questions, just basic ques-
tions about any kind of piece of literature.

Well, these guys read it; they could answer the simple questions
about text—who was in it, what was it about—so I just kept it up
with them for about 4 weeks. In fact I decided to take it through
the entire semester. I just used this little experiment. There were
about five students who sat over in a corner every time we had
reading, and they watched the monitor and read this book.

I don’t know—I don’t have any empirical results—although I do
know they could answer questions about the text, and they did
read, just by taking it from one medium and putting it in another.
It’s because that is what they are used to now.

I think the future is real bright. I think New Mexico and a lot of
States are wrestling—and I think Ms. Welch, doing what she did in
Kentucky, Erobably has a real good grasp of how States have to
wrestle with this kind of thing—because the Federal Government,
quite frankly, has not taken—a very active role, it is a very dispar-
ate effort—there must be five or six different agencies that are in-
volved in one way, shape or form. And I noticed that nobody even
mentioned today the DOE and the DOD and their involvement
with public schools, especially in the areas of math and science
education. In New Mexico because of the DOE presence, we are
heavily involved with them, and the two national laboratories that
are based in New Mexico have very extensive programs and are
getting more extensive.

In all the Albuquerque high schools now there is an advisor from
Sandia National Laboratories who is essentially a science advisor.
This is a resource person that these schools can go to. In addition
to that, the two labs are very firm believers in technology and have
p}zpvided impetuses, which brings up the whole question of partner-
ships.

What are the mechanisms that are available? That’s why Whit-
tle Communications is so attractive. It creates a mechanism to get
equipment. The Department of Energy evidently is very willing
and able to provide equipment and is seen to do so in some in-
stances.

Public broadcasters have to deal with innumerable agencies in
order to get money sometimes. If you want educational program-
ming, you go to the department ofy education; if you want to buy
equipment you have to go to the Department of Commerce and the
Federal Communications Commission to get permission to license
that equipment. There is no real sense of coordination involved in
this whole thing.
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I guess if I were asking something of Congress—and I would echo
your words that you spoke earlier—I think that technology is not
going to go away. In fact it is going to become a prevalent part of
the educational environment. We are going to be invelved in an ex-
periment next year where it will be work station to work station,
whether you take a digital signal and you send it up on a satellite,
or you can send it on fiber optics—it doesn’t really matter—and
people will be sitting at a work station and are not only going to
have instructional television with a professor right there—in multi-
ple locations; it doesn’t really matter how many you go to just so
they are all hooked up and they can receive this signal—but they
can send out real-time computer information, both text and graph-
ics, and the students out there can sit at their little work stations
and manipulate this stuff in real-time and send it back, and the
professor can critique it in real-time.

You are talking about sending data at supercomputer speeds. It
is an incredible thing, and it is going to be here. The technology is
here. It has been here for 20 years. And I think that what you've
got here is a real opportunity with Congress to focus a national
debate. But I think it is real important, as you an see, that this has
been a grassroots effort.

There are a lot of good models out there that Congress can use to
focus on, and I would encourage you to—I don’t think the debate
today is over Whittle Communications and whether it is a good
idea to run commercials or whatever in a classroom, or Turner
Broadcasting and whether they are providing the same kinds of
materials. I think that is almost immnaterial to the debate. It is
part of the picture, and it should be looked at as part of the pic-
ture.

I think too many times decisions involving technology in the
classroom are done at a higher level, and teachers have no input
into it. I can give you examples of where there are closets full of
VCRs and computers sitting in places where they ordered them,
they delivered them, and the teacher just throws up his or her
hands and says, “I'm not going to use this stuff. Forget it.”

There is this piecemeal approach. There is no coordination. I
would urge and encourage Congress to look at a national debate
that would look at the role of coordination. As previous testimony
pointed out, there is no coordination, there is no ready access to
this information, this material.

We are going to have technology. What are we going to do with
it? How is it going to be integrated into the Public school and the
university environment to maximize it? That’s why there needs to
be a national debate on this particular issue, and I certainly en-
courage the committee and Congress to look at this public policy
issue and to hopefully develop some redirection of resources to
assist schools and universities to do this.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Tydings follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF GARY TYDINGS

Mr. Chairman: Thank you for the opportunity to testify on the important issue of
technology in the classroorm.
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Also, this gives me the opportunity to highlight what is being done in the area of
instructional television in New Mexico and to discuss the positive elements and the
problems associated with the technology.

I have been involved with instructional television for 15 years both as a classroom
teacher and an administrator of an ITV program.

The University of New Mexico operates an eight channel ITFS system and uses
this technology along with fiber optic cable and satellite to deliver credit and non-
credit classes. Currently the university offers 50-60 for credit classes leading to de-
grees, per semester in engincering, math, sciences, public administration, law and
nursing to over 600 students in New Mexico, eastern Arizona and southern Colora-
do. The system utilizes one-way video and two-way audio for delivery.

UNM and New Mexico State University in Las Cruces, New Mexico, share
common courses in un innovative Masters Degree program in Manufacturing Engi-
neering and another program offers certificate courses in waste management. The
latter includes classes from New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology in Se-
corro, New Mexico, and is delivered via satellite and fiber optic cable. These pro-
grams utilize the expertise of three institutions and two national laboratories and
consolidates them into one program. UNM is also a member of National 'l‘echnolo(fi-
cal University which is a consortium of 35 universities offering Masters degrees de-
livereddvia satellite to over 300 organizations, businesces and government sites na-
tionwide.

In the non-credit area, UNM is producing two video conference series which pro-
vides training in the areas of Total Quality Management and Hazardous/Radioac-
tive Waste Management. These series are received nationwide via satellite by 100
sites and approximately 2000 participants per program. The latter series is produced
with a consortium called WERC (Waste Management Education and Research Con-
sortium) and comprised of UNM, NMSU, NMIMT, Los Alamos and Sandia Labora-
tories and US Department of Energy.

This is the third series we have produced and we have found it a very effective
wzgtto train people on specific topics.

her university activities in the state are with Eastern New Mexico University
in Portales where they use open broadcast and ITFS to deliver classes to Hobbs,
Roswell and Clovis, New Mexico, primarily in business and education.

Luna Technical Vocational Institute in Las Vegas and San Juan College in Farm-
ington, New Mexico have received permission or have built ITV facitities on their
relslpective campuses and will begin programming to business and public schools this
fall.

The public schools in New Mexico are involved in distance learning in two areas;
computer assisted and ITV.

Twenty-five school districts are participating with the TI-IN network which offers
classes in languages, reading, math and science K-I2, plus inservice training for
teachers. This material is delivered by satellite or through local cable television sys-
tems. It uses one-way video and two-way audio, fax and computers to communicate.

In the last 2 years three small school districts in the eastern side of the state have
been connected with a two-way video fiber optic cable pri.vided by a rural telephone
cooperative. This allowed a teacher in one district to teach and see the other stu-
dents in the other two. This is based on successful molels in the midwest among
small schools facing consolidation in order to preserve the school. This year Clovis
Community College and two additional districts wiil be acded to the system.

For the past 5 years computer networks have provided access to instructional
aides, inservice and knowledge sharing among New Mexico’s science teachers and
students. Recently, a network connecting BIA schools in New Mexico and Arizona
has been established which allows access to various data bases for instructional and
informational purposes. Through an organization called Technet, all school districts
in the state will or now have access to several on-line data bases, e-mail, library
card catalogs for instructional or informational activities.

All these vigorous distance learning activities have been initiated and sustained
by a combination of grants, ﬁifts. internal funds or self-supporting programs with no
systematic coordination by the State.

For the past 4 years it has been my pleasure and frustration to be involved in a
statewide planning effort to develop andp construct a statewide instructional telecom-
munications network. The group is composed of business, the federal laboratories,
military establishments, public schools and t secondary institutions. In 1988 a
needs based plan was submitted to the State legislature for funding. It is still under
discussion.

In the past year, US West, the principle telephone company has begun construc-
tion of fiber optic based network connecting all post secondary schools with video
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and data capabili .ies. They are working in conjunction with the other carriers in
the state to prov.de connectivity.

It appears tl.at the future is bright for u statewide network using a mix of tech-
nologies to deliver instructional material to the schools, the worksite or wherever it
is needed.

It has become apparent to me over my years of involvement in instructional tele-
communications that to be successful, a need must be there and the appropriate
technology used to fill it, not the other way around.

Too many people become enamored with the mechanics of what it will do and
forget there are students and teachers at the other end and it may not meet their
need or it is too hard to use. It needs to be totally transparent and not inhibit teach-
ing or learning. Most teachers and school districts have not effectively integrated
ITV into their curriculum, either through lack of funds, time or difficulty in operat-
ing it.

The need, especially in rural, underserved and geographically dispersed states
such as New Mexico, for access to this material is not questioned. TI-IN and others
have a large and enthusiastic student base. These students are truly motivated be-
cause they can not get these classes any other way. The students UNM deal with
are the same way about the access to these programs at their worksite.

As an educator and administrator, I would encourage the Committee to explore
these areas and assist in providing the answers to some questions,

The technology is becoming more and more sophisticated. UNM will be involved
in a workstation to workstation, two-way video, audio, and data being delivered at
rates almost supercomputer speed allowing real time manipulation of graphics and
text. Where is the application of this technology except in the very technical fields
and who can afford it and operate it easily?

The students that are using this material and taking these classes are highly mo-
tivated to succeed. What abou. the other 80-90 percent of the students that this ma-
terial was not designed for, what can be done to use technology to assist them? As a
former teacher, I had to spend most of my time with this group. The same tech-
niques used to motivate them could be integrated into instructional design for ITV
programs,

What is being done to assist schools and teachers to integrate this material fully
into the curriculum? Too many times a decision to use ITV is done at the adminis-
trative level with no input from the teachers. That often results with the technology
never being utilized.

The final element is funding for the necessary training and the hardware to sup-
port the instructional effort. Most schools, as 1 mentioned previousty about New
Mexico, do no. .iave the money. That is why programs such as what Whittle is pro-
viding are so attractive. It provides them with the necessary hardware to access the
material but it lacks the support system to fully integrate it into instruction. You
are left with a piecemeal approach. Where within in the government could funds be
redirected to assist in solving this need?

ITV is a wonderful tool, in the last few years it has shown and subsequent evalua-
tions prove that it can be as effective a learning mechanism as being in the class-
room. It, however, should only be viewed as one more effective way to share educa-
tional RESOURCES and maximize their impact on students.

I hope the Committee will examine these issues presented today and develop them
into effective public policy and priority legislation.

Thank you.

Senator BiNcaMaN. Thank you very much.

Mr. Mankiewicz, let me just ask you this. A book I read some
time ago struck me as a very insightful document. I think it was by
Neil Postman up at Columbia, and it is entitled, Entertaining Our-
selves to Death—but I may have the title wrong——

Mr. Mankiewicz. No; I think that’s right.

Senator BINGAMAN. Well, as I recall his message, it was basically
that the level of public discourse on a lot of important issues has
been substantially debased becav-.. 'l of our news comes through
the television and is essentially 1. ; that what used to be real
issues and the joining of real issues in public debate, in newspa-
pers, or however, has been replaced with a very saccharin kind of
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news reporting, which is really aimed at the lowest common de-
nominator.

Don't we have a danger, if this is a valid concern, which it
- seemed to me it was, that by now having essentially news pro-
grams beamed into all of our schools and delivered to kids as part
of their—maybe officially, it is not part of the curriculum, but if

ou have to sit and watch it every day, it is pretty doggone close to
ing part of the curriculum—isn’t there a real danger that that's
what we're going to wind up with, even more of that?

Mr. Mankiewicz. I think that's a very real danger. In fact I
would hope that if there is going to be national debate on these
issues that that is the issue that will concern us, which is to say
the fact that public discourse and the discussion of public affairs,
whether it is at the school level or at the posteducational level, or
even on the floor of the Congress, is increasingly, as you say, dena-
tured, it is increasingly blended, it is bland, it is short. It is at best,
according to the producers of it, entertaining and controversial per-
haps to the point of violence, and very little informative; I agree
with that, and I think Postman’s book and a companion book in
which he says that television has in a sense ended childhood and
has made children adults too early because there are no myster-
ies—those are serious questions, and the obvious answers from
those questions should not be used to keep television out or to
make it less of a part of the educational process because it is here,
and there is no way to avoid it. We are going to see soundbites. We
are going to see great public questions reduced to yes and no, good
and bad, black and white, 30 seconds, 45 seconds for an in-depth
report.

The problem is not, I think, Mr. Chairman, to 2liminate that and
to get back to a time when Mr. Lincoln and Mr. Douglas could
spend four hours each entertaining and informing an audience who
sat in the sun and listened to them and perhaps took notes. That's
not going to happen. The problem is how to take the enormous
impact of television and what it has done to us. There are studies
that show that within a few months of birth children are attracted
to television and the flickering light, the screen, who obviously
have no sense of what they see on there, and that we are becoming
increasingly visual image-oriented.

How do understand that, live with it, and yet expand the educa-
tional process and the public affairs discussion, I don’t know how to
do it, but I know that you can’t simply say it is television that has
become the great cuisinart of public affairs, blending everything to
the point where there are very few distinctions, and it can all be
swallowed easily You can’t simply say let's do without television;
let's have serious reading in the classroom.

Senator BINGAMAN. On the general subject, technology—I think
everybody said today and long before today that technology and
this telecommunications technology has a tremendous capability to
assist us in education. Would you agree with my conc'usion that
the Federal Government has totally dropped the ball in providing
support for the use of technology throughout our school system?
We've got a weird circumstance here where we've got all this great
capability that we love to allude to, but from the point of view—I
always enjoyed that story about Robert Benchley, when he was a
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student at Harvard, one of the exam questions was “Describe the
North Atlantic Fishing Treaty and its consequences.” He knew
nothindg about the subject because he hadi’t read the textbook, so
he said I prefer to approach this from the point of view of the fish,
and he wrote an exam answer from that point of view.

From the point of view of the “fish”, meaning the student, and
the teacher, most of this great capability is just a pipe dream, it
seems to me, because there is not the equipment in our schocls and
there are not the resources available and the instruction of the
teachers available and the training to use these technologies.

It seems to me that there has been a great lack of leadership by
the Feaeral Government in this respect. I'd be interested in your
views and then Mr. Tydings'.

Mr. MaNKIEWICZ. {agree with that. We began 25 years ago
spending an enormous amount of money in elementary and second-
ary education at the Federal level that we had not spent before—
had not thought it was a Federal problem.

I don’t think there are very many people who would say that all
those billions of dollars have improved public education at the ele-
mentary or secondary level, and yet there is thig incredible world
of technology that we have hear({ described here—but it is not in
the classroom, and if it is, it is irproperly taught or it is inad-
equately taught, because the government, which is really the only
place where this coordination can take place, has not developed a
systematic program of providing this kind of technological avail-
ability to the classroom and the training of teachers and other per-
sorinel to make use of it.

There are extraordinary things going on in the world— the com-
puter, the satollite, the fax machine, all kinds of things that we un-
derstand and use a lot, plus all of the new techniques and the
things that were made clear today that telephone companies may
be providing vs within a year; astonishing access to information,
These things are not available in the classroom, and that is where
they ought to be, under the contro] and the administration of
peo;'J]le who are trained to do it.

The Whittle company puts a television set in every classroom,
Nobody has done that up to now. That's not so much a credit to the
Whittle Corporation, although it certainly is, but a reproach to our
educational system.

Senator BINGAMAN. Gary, did you want to comment on that?

Mr. TypinGs. Yes, just very briefly. I would say—-vnd again T will
be a litt'e anecdotal and use my brother, who is a puk.is (choul
teacher and has been for about 15 years. His comment to me has
always been, “Gary, this is all wonderful, but if it is not user-
friendly, and I cannot use it readily and easily, I'm not going to use
it; I don’t have time. And not only that, but we don’t have enough
money to buy it.” End of story.

Senator BINGAMAN. On this issue of helping teachers to know
how tn use this and to integrate it into the curriculum, is there a
need for some national effort to do that? I mean, if in fact the Fed-
eral Government is broadcasting a lot of information which we
claim is useful, we don’t seem to be helping schools to obtain the
necessary equipment to use that information that is coming across,
ana we also don’t seem to be helping teachers and school adininis.
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trators to know enough about the value and capability and oppor-
tunity that comes » ' h that technology to take advantage of it. Is
there a teacher training need here that is going unmet?

Mr. Typings. Oh, huge. I would say that it is unequivocal. I guess
to oversimplify, and certainly not being flippant, is the fact that if
you gave every public school teacher in the United States, one,
access to this material in a readily available manner, plus you gave
them two hours of release time a week to learn how to use it, you
would probably solve a lot of problems. That is reality. It is won-
derful that there is a television set in the classroom, and most
people because they heve them at home can use a VCR. But when
you try to integrate the capabilities of that technology and other
technologies as well into the curricular effort, there is no train-
ing--none.

Senator BINGAMAN. Mr. Mankiewicz?

Mr. Mankiewicz. I would answer it with another set of statistics.
Since 1960, the early 1960’s, a time when the first generation of
Americans, teenagers, who could take the SATs had been raised on
television—in other words, the first generation of television-raised
American youngsters began taking the SATs—from that time on,
the SAT scores in the country have gone steadily down. Urban,
rural, black, white, it doesn’t seem to matter what groups, socioeco-
nomic status or geography; the scores have steadily gone down be-
cause the SAT i basically a reading comprehension test.

That should tell us something, but at the same time, 1Q scores
seem to have gone up, so that American teenagers may be far less
literate in the last 25 years, but may be more intelligent. In other
words, they are picking up information not from reading but from
the other great source of information, which is the television set.
To ignore that event, to igiore those trends, could be fatal.

It is not to say we should replace reading with television, out we
should understand that there are ways in which young people ac-
quire knowledge now, and we ought to be able to use that not to
‘“qumb down’—as one of the panelists said—the information, but
to sharpen the way in which information is presented in both ways.

Ted Koppel had a marvelous television show about a year and a
half ago, one of his specials called, I believe, “Revolution in a Box”,
in which he talked about the uses to which the new technology is
being put almost casually in a political way. He said that people
can bring down a government with an UplinK and access to a satel-
lite, an uplink, a xerox machine, a fax machine—that these tech-
nologies leap over borders now and leap over ideologies and leap
over governments. That is all true. And if - can do that we ought
to be able to not just teach kids to read, but build on the fact that
there are now other ways besides reading to acquire information—
and to reinforce the reading, of course.

Senator BINGAMAN. Gentlemen, I appreciate very much youx
being dhere and testifying. I think we have covered some good
ground.

I gather that Senator Pell and also the State superintendent of
public instruction in California, Bill Honig, both have testimony
that they wish to submit, and I'll include that in the record.

[The prepared statements of Senator Pell and Mr. Honig follow:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR PELL

At the outset, I would like to commend Senator Bingaman for holding this hear-
ing to examine the use of television in the classroomn. All too often as we rush for-
ward to embrace new technologies, we rarely step back to evaluate their eff:ctive-
ness in practice. I therefore look forward to today's discussion.

Television is not new to the classroom. As far back as 1958, the National Defense
Education Act, our response to the Sputnik Launch, brought the latest technology
to bear upon math and science education. At that time—remember it was 1958—the
latest technology was television. Unfortunately, many of those televisions were
eventually stored in closets. Inadequate programming and teacher training made
them essentially useless.

Since that time, however, the use of television has improved dramatically and has
become a much more commonly used educational tool. Televigion offers visual
access to worlds, cultures, ideas and concepts that many students would never have
the opportunity to see. We shouid make every effort to capitalize on this opportuni-
ty. But we should also learn from our mistakes in the 1960's.

We must insure that teachers are able to provide students with a cognitive con-
nection between what they are viewing and the regular academic curriculum. Oth-
erwise television will be unable to meet its potential of having a significant impact
on the learning process. It is therefore with this in mind that I look forward to the
remarks of our witnesses this morning.

STATEMENT 0N EpUCATION AND CHANNEL ONE

By Bill Honig, Superintendent of Public Instruction

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to comment on the participation by
public schools in programs, such as “Channel One,” which use curricular time for
commercial purposes.

Whittle Communications is aggressively marketing “Channel One"” in the public
schools. Whittle offers schools equipment, such as a satellite dish, television moni-
tors, video cassette recorders and equipment maintenance in exchange for a con-
tract guaranteeing that :i specified percentage of students (as many as 60 to 70 per-
cent) will watch the “Channel’ One” program at the same time every day without
any interruptions.

The “Channel One” programming includes comm-rcials, in addition to news and
public affairs, as an integral part of the broadcast. Teachers are not allowed to
schedule the timing of the program to complement planned instructional activities
or to interrupt the broadcast for discussion.

Teenagers are a significant force in the marketplace. They are impressionable and
form loyalties to commercial brands on the bsasis of advertising. Parents entrust
their children to our public schools, “Channel One” is a commercial transaction
that violates this trust. We have no right—legally or ethically—to sell access to our
students by converting the educational purpose of school to a commercial one, even
if schools receive a modest benefit in return.

A recent study, which surveyed over three thousand students at fifty-one schools
(Tuning In On Current Events, Southeastern Educational Improvement Laboratory,
March 15, 1991), reports that “students believed that schools implicitly endorsed the
advertisements on video news programs” and tended to believe that the products
advertised were ogood for them. In the advertising industry, the easiest way to win
respect for a product is to present it in the context of something which already com-
mands respect. The school is a powerful symtol for the adolescent and a commercial
message gains respect because the schools present it. Schools that participate in the
“Channel One” proposal are, unwittingly, endorsing the commercial products in-
cluded in the program.

The "“Channel One” proposal also suffers frorn another policy defect. It cedes con-
trol of the curriculum to an outside party which is not primarily interested in edu-
cating students but in selling advertisements. We should take seriously the sanctity
of what we teach and not condone surrendering the curriculum for even a few min-
utes a day to a commercial or politicel interest.

The use of news programs in the classroom is a promising idea, but only if teach-
ers actively incorporate the material into the curriculum and use it as a basis of
discussion. The stringent programming and the controls on viewing that Whittle
Communications imposes, seriously dilutes any academic value of the broadcasts
and, in essence, allows them to dictate part of ti;e curriculum. Luckily, non-commer-
cial news programming alternatives are available to schools. Broadcasts like Cable
News Network and the Discovery Channel are producing commercial-free news and
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informational programs especially for students. Teachers determine if, when, and
how, these shows should be used in their classrooms.

The role of classroom TV should always be controlled by the teacher; the medium
should never control the teacher. I urge the Committee to reject any attempts by
Whittle Communications to have the Congress support the proliferation of “Channel
One" in the schools.

Senator BINGaMAN. We hope to have another hearing on this
same set of issues sometime in the future, but I think this laid a
good groundwork for some of the things going on, and I appreciate
your being here.

Mr. MaNkiEwicz. Thank you, Senator.

Senator BINGAMAN. Thank you very much.

The subcommittee stands adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 11:10 a.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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